
 

 

WAITSFIELD PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 

March 19, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION WILL BE HOLDING A HYBRID MEETING.  

THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND IN PERSON AT WAITSFIELD TOWN HALL 

OR REMOTE VIA ZOOM WITH TELEPHONE AND/OR VIDEO ACCESS. 

THOSE PARTICIPATING MAY SPEAK DURING THE DESIGNATED PERI-

ODS.  

To join the meeting remotely, use this link:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312    

Meeting ID: 919 026 5312 

Or call: 1 929 205 6099 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 

2. REVISIONS TO AGENDA, IF ANY (5 +/- min) 

 

3. PUBLIC FORUM (5 +/- min) 

 

4. ANNUAL REORGANIZATION (10 +/- min) 

 

5. CVRPC PRESENTATION (30 +/- min) 

 

6. VILLAGE MASTER PLANNING (25 +/- min) AnnMarie/JB 

a. Submittal Update 

b. Steering Committee 

 

7. NDA DESIGNATION UPDATE (5 +/- min) JB 

 

8. WASTEWATER PLANNING PROJECT UPDATE (10 +/- min) JB/Bob 

 

9. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – FEBRUARY 20, 2023 (5 +/ min) 

 

10. PC VACANCY (5 +/- min) 

    

11. OTHER BUSINESS (20+/-min) 

a. Act 250 Update 

   

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission 

Vacant, Vice-Chair 

Beth Cook 

Robert Cook 

Emma Hanson 

AnnMarie Harmon 

Alice Peal, Chair 

Jonathan Ursprung 

 

 

Planning & Zoning Ad-

ministrator 

J. B. Weir 

 

 

Town Administrator 

Annie Decker-Dell’Isola 

 

 

Town Clerk 

Jennifer Peterson 

 

 

Town Treasurer 

Randy Brittingham 

 

 

Waitsfield Town Office 

4144 Main Street 

Waitsfield, VT  05673 

(802) 496-2218 

www.waitsfieldvt.us 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312


Waitsfield Planning and Zoning Administrators Report 

Planning Commission March 19, 2024 meeting 

 

4. Annual Reorganization 

 

Members must elect a new Chair and Vice-Chair for the upcoming year.  In addition, members 

need to reaffirm the meeting days and time, as well as reaffirm the places of publication (Valley 

Reporter, Town office, Town website, USPO, and the Village Grocery). 

 

6. Village Master Planning (MPG) 

 

Included in the packet are draft questions for the consultants who will be interviewed for the 

Village Master Planning project.  There are three total submittals: Dubois & King, SE Group and 

Regrowth Planning.  The questions are not complete.  Please review the RFQ and provide any 

additional questions you think should be asked. 

 

The PZA and Ms. Harmon met on March 14 to discuss the steering committee that will over see 

this project.  The committee will consist of PC members Ms. Harmon and Ms. Cook, along with 

Sean Lawson, Mac Rood, Brian Shupe, Kaziah Haviland, and either Ira Shadis or Luke Foley of 

Friends of the Mad River.  The RFQ for the project is again included in the packet for a reminder 

of the pending interview process, key dates and proposed project milestones. 

 

At the April 2 meeting, the PZA will include the summaries of the consultant submittals for 

commissioners’ review.  The Steering Committee will conduct interviews of three consultants 

the week of April 15. 

 

 

 

7. Neighborhood Development Area (NDA) Designation 

 

Jacob Hemmerick from ACCD has reviewed our draft NDA application.  His only requests were 

to include the river corridor on the mapping and to submit a clearer map of the proposed NDA 

boundary.  Sam Robinson of the MRVPD made those changes and the application has been 

finalized for review at the March 25th meeting of the Downtown Board.  The meeting will be 

held from 1-4:00pm and is virtual only.  At least one representative from the Planning 

Commission should attend, along with the PZA.  The board packet will be finalized early next 

week and Jacob will get me additional details then.  Here is the Board webpage, with dates and 

links: https://accd.vermont.gov/community-development/designation-programs/downtown-

development-board. 

 

https://accd.vermont.gov/community-development/designation-programs/downtown-development-board
https://accd.vermont.gov/community-development/designation-programs/downtown-development-board


In an email to the PZA, Jacob Hemmerick noted that he will be voting in favor of the 

designation! 

 

8. Wastewater Planning Project Update 

 

Joshua Schwartz’s final Wastewater Planning Project Update (#9) is included in the packet. With 

Joshua currently on sabbatical and the Town Administrator transitioning away from her position, 

the PZA, Robin Morris and Chach Curtis are taking the reins on the project until April 1 when 

Annie Decker Dell’Isola takes on the part time position of project manager for 20-25 hours a 

week.  The PZA and Mr. Morris have been reaching out to the landowners of the priority service 

parcels over the last few weeks.  The responses have been overwhelmingly positive and verbal 

commitments have been given for almost 70% of the 65,000 gpd of capacity set to be allocated 

to priority users! 

 

The PZA, along with Robin Morris and Jon Ashley are working on the USDA RD application 

for submittal by April 12.  The PZA has been in contact with Senators Sanders and Welch’s 

office with regard to CDS applications, which should be open by the end of April.   

 

There are only 88 days to the bond vote as of this writing!  Please review the flyer for the project 

and be able to rattle off key points to your friends and neighbors as we approach June 11. 

 

The Town website page for the project has been updated and can be found here. 

 

The story map page is online!  Visit that page here.  This was done by Joshua Schwartz and Sam 

Robinson of the MRVPD. 

 

10. PC Vacancy 

 

The PZA has included in the packet a draft advertisement for the Planning Commission vacancy 

resulting from Mr. Anderson’s completion of his term.  Once approved by the board, the PZA 

will get this published in the Valley Reporter 

 

11. Other Business 

 

The PZA has included a pdf of an email from the Vermont Planning Listserv.  The email 

provides a look into current legislation regarding Act 250 and extrapolations on provisions of the 

HOME Act.   

 

 

 

https://www.waitsfieldvt.us/waitsfield-wastewater-planning-project/
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/5d44987d1089437884c7a1f995d46d83


 

Upcoming trainings/webinars: 

 

Open Meeting Law for Boards and Committees 

 

Every municipal board, council, commission, and committee (see examples listed below) is a 

“public body” and is therefore required to comply with Vermont’s Open Meeting Law. Learn – 

or review – the basic requirements of the law, including: 

 

public notice and creating an agenda 

managing public participation 

taking and posting meeting minutes 

The requirements of the temporary provisions enacted in 2024 allowing remote and hybrid 

meetings will also be discussed. 

 

This training is critical for elected and appointed members of all statutory municipal boards, 

commissions, and committees listed below – and also all committees appointed by selectboards 

and other legislative bodies. Due to the great variety of locally appointed public bodies, the 

following lists are not exhaustive, but they do include most of the groups included in Vermont 

Statutes. 

 

Legislative (Governing) Bodies* 

 

Board of Aldermen 

City Council 

Board of Village Trustees 

Prudential Committee 

Selectboard 

Boards 

 

Board of Abatement 

Board of Auditors 

Board of Civil Authority 

Board of Listers 

Development Review Board 

Library Trustees 

Trustees of Public Funds 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Commissions 

 



Conservation Commission 

Planning Commission 

Committees 

 

ARPA Committee 

Budget Advisory Committee 

Recreation Committee 

Others by statute or appointed by selectboards (and other legislative bodies) 

* Legislative bodies can also learn about Open Meeting Law requirements as part of the 

Selectboard Essentials in-person event on March 23, 2024. 

 

Presenters 

Kail Romanoff, Staff Attorney I, VLCT Municipal Assistance Center 

 

Register here. 

 

An Introduction to Vermont’s Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Plants 

 

Did you know that the Vermont Natural Heritage Inventory maps and monitors about 600 rare 

and uncommon plant species across the state? Join State Botanist Grace Glynn for a fun glimpse 

into some of our rare plants, where they’re found on the landscape, and the ongoing work to 

conserve them. Learn more about what towns can do to better protect these important pieces of 

our state’s natural heritage. 

 

Presenters: 

 

Grace Glynn, Botanist, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

Jens Hilke, Conservation Planner, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

Repeat sessions of this webinar will be offered on the following two dates:  

 

Session 2: Tuesday, April 16th, 2024, 10:00 – 11:00 a.m. Register here. 

 

Using BioFinder 4.0: A step by step introduction to using this updated webmap 

 

The BioFinder website is an online map and database that allows users to explore the patterns of 

habitat distribution that most impact Vermont’s biodiversity. It hosts the Vermont Conservation 

Design data – all components of a complete vision for maintaining ecological function to secure 

our natural heritage for future generations. The Biofinder website was just updated to BioFinder 

4.0 and while the functionality is nearly identical to the previous version, now is the perfect time 

to learn how to better use this multi-faceted tool. Join us and improve your skills in using 

https://www.vlct.org/events/OpenMeetingLaw_2404
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/13c1e8dd-b7a1-49e4-aacc-5f92c7558180@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6


BioFinder. This webinar will focus on the functionality of the webmap itself. To learn more 

about the data behind the maps displayed on BioFinder, be sure to join an upcoming 

"Understanding Vermont Conservation Design" webinar. 

 

Presenters: 

 

David Moroney, Conservation Planning Specialist, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

Jens Hilke, Conservation Planner, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

Repeat sessions of this webinar will be offered on the following three dates:  

 

Session 1: Monday, March 25th, 2024 2:00 – 3:00 p.m. Register 

Session 2: Thursday April 11th 2024, 11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.  Register 

Session 3: Tuesday, May 14th, 2024, 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. Register 

 

Understanding Vermont Conservation Design: The data behind BioFinder 

 

Vermont Conservation Design is the data and the vision that powers the BioFinder website. It is 

a prioritization tool that identifies the lands and waters most important for maintaining Vermont's 

ecologically functional landscape – one that conserves current biological diversity and allows 

species to move and shift in response to climate and land-use changes. Vermont Conservation 

Design allows users to see patterns in Vermont’s forests and waterways, and identify the places 

that connect both into a functional network. The Design was just updated with new landscape 

scale components and Wildlife Road Crossings. It now features more accurate edges of the 

habitat blocks, that allow for a better understanding of the pattern and network of connected 

forests. Join us to learn more about this important conservation science. 

 

 Presenters: 

 

Jens Hilke, Conservation Planner, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

David Moroney, Conservation Planning Specialist, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

 Repeat sessions of this webinar will be offered on the following three dates:  

 

Session 1: Thursday, March 21st, 2024, 1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Register 

Session 2: Thursday, April 4th, 11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Register 

Session 3: Tuesday, April 30th, 2024, 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. Register 

 

Resilient Rivers: Good for fish and people 

 

Fish and other aquatic organisms face threats from development as well as increasing frequency 

and intensity of floods and droughts and rising temperatures. Restoring rivers to natural 

https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/8d49732b-ccf4-4aa4-8a66-a214a3f7da86@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/bb013867-e56b-433c-87a7-dfb600c37179@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/240cbd98-262b-44fc-b313-fb8a0880179e@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/49d311a3-d536-4cd1-92cc-7e57501f14a8@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/72c567ee-21d3-4373-b7e7-50b86d8802b2@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/9b37878a-9d68-4823-86c7-f806b0a1b027@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6


conditions will help ensure the long-term survival of aquatic organisms, and has co-benefits for 

water quality and flood resilience. This talk will highlight three areas where municipalities can 

help protect aquatic habitats: forested riparian areas, aquatic organism passage, and log jams. 

Join VFWD Aquatic Habitat Biologist Will Eldridge to learn how allowing rivers to function 

naturally where it is safe to do so is more effective and more sustainable in the long run. 

 

Presenters: 

 

Will Eldridge, Aquatic habitat Biologist, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

Jens Hilke, Conservation Planner, VT Fish and Wildlife Department  

 Repeat sessions of this webinar will be offered on the following two dates:  

 

Session 2: Tuesday, April 9th, 2024 1:00 – 2:00 p.m. Register 

 

Getting to Know Act 250 

 

Join CVRPC on Thursday, March 21, from 6:00 to 7:30 PM, when the Natural Resources Board 

will provide an overview and introduction to Act 250, the state’s land use and development law. 

Staff from the NRB will walk you through the essentials of Act 250, including when Act 250 

applies and when it does not; the permitting process (including town and regional planning 

participation), answer general questions, and point you toward resources for additional 

information.    

 

This is not a discussion about proposed changes that are currently being discussed at the State 

House, rather an informational presentation and discussion about Act 250 process currently. 

 

We will be offering both remote and in person options to participate  – details available at:  

https://centralvtplanning.org/about/minutes-agendas-staff-reports/board-of-commissioners/    

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

J.B. Weir 

https://events.gcc.teams.microsoft.com/event/05981260-f21e-4502-b9a9-344f28547059@20b4933b-baad-433c-9c02-70edcc7559c6
https://centralvtplanning.org/about/minutes-agendas-staff-reports/board-of-commissioners/


  

 

 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

Environmental Consultant / Municipal Planning Professional  
is requested for a Village Master Plan for Irasville, Vermont 

Waitsfield, Vermont   
[FEBRUARY 14, 2024] 

RFQ Due on [MARCH 15, 2024] 

 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Overview 

 
This project is to create a Village Master Plan for Irasville, with the goal of increasing housing, 

improving natural resources and increasing resilience against a changing climate. The Village 

Master Plan will include current conditions, community attitudes, identification of wetland 

enhancements, realistic design scenarios, and next steps for phased revitalization and resilience. 

Context and Background 

 
Waitsfield’s Town Plan identifies Irasville as the growth area for the Mad River Valley, 

accommodating the majority of new residential and commercial development in a traditional VT 

village form. 

 

The lack of municipal infrastructure, coupled with the lack of an integrated stormwater management 

and wetlands approach, has resulted in a fragmented development pattern and limited capacity to 

accommodate growth. 

 

The town has recently made substantial progress on a variety of stumbling blocks keeping Irasville 

from realizing its potential: 

 

• Municipal water system installed in ‘12 

• Municipal wastewater system planning is currently underway, final design in ‘24 

• Irasville Wetlands Analysis, ‘21 

 

Building off this progress, as well as leveraging lessons learned from the town’s previous Irasville 

visioning efforts, the town is well positioned to undertake a process focused on two overarching 

objectives: 1) enhance Irasville’s absorptive capacity while also meeting municipal goals; 2) enable 

and promote Irasville’s development as a compact, mixed-use, and pedestrian-oriented growth 

center. 

 

Extensive conversations with our region’s DEC Wetlands Ecologist have resulted in an 

understanding of the key role that Irasville’s existing wetlands complex plays in flood storage, 



  

 

 

water quality improvement, and more. In a time of climate change-induced weather patterns, their 

role is increasing in significance. Waitsfield is committed to utilizing the lessons of its 2021 

Wetlands Analysis to guide master planning, focusing first and foremost on how to enhance and 

support the functioning of Irasville’s wetlands complex. The town is fully committed to evolving 

Irasville’s automobile-centric development pattern into a bustling pedestrian-oriented growth center 

while also increasing the natural functioning of its landscape. 

Funding 

 
A total of $49,990 is available for consultant services from the Municipal Planning Grant Program 

administered by the Vermont Agency of Commerce and Community Development. 

Work Plan 

 
The overarching objectives of the Irasville Master Planning project are to enhance the landscape’s 

absorptive capacity while also meeting municipal goals that enable and promote the development of 

a compact, mixed-use, and pedestrian-oriented growth center. We aim for a future Irasville that is 

home to the bulk of the Mad River Valley’s housing and commercial needs at a pedestrian scale, 

resulting in a critical mass that supports a diversity of viable businesses in the village, as well as 

ample ridership for a commuter bus connecting Irasville to neighboring population centers. This 

future Irasville has a highly functioning environment where critical wetlands have been enhanced 

and storm water captured, intercepting rainwater that would otherwise end up in the Mad River and 

exacerbate flooding. The natural functions of the immediate landscape are understood, 

strengthened, and protected. 

 

In order to achieve this projected future Irasville, we will need to start with a plan. The Irasville 

Master Plan will provide strategic recommendations for advancing the housing and mixed-use 

development of Irasville in a manner that increases the absorptive capacity of its wetlands. The 

project will include an engaged public process to ensure that the broad community envisions a 

future that’s mutually beneficial, as well as incorporate implementable design approaches that build 

off of the existing momentum. 

 

The long-term outcome of this project is a more resilient Waitsfield, where the town’s long-

standing commitment to smart-growth principles is realized, one that welcomes changing 

demographics, all in a location that is safe from, and minimizes the likelihood of flooding. 

Proposed Timeframe 

Contract Awarded, Proposed Start Date: May 1, 2024 

Existing Conditions Analysis: May – July 2024 

Community Development Goals: July – August 2024 

Wetland Enhancement Opportunities: August – October 2024 

Community Engagement: As appropriate May 2024 – August 2025 



  

 

 

Design (including State Wetlands review): November 2024 – August 2025 

Strategic Recommendations: November 1, 2025 

Project Outline and Deliverables 

 

0) Project Management - Project management activities including internal coordination, project 

communications, and invoicing. 

1a) Existing Conditions Analysis - Summarize Conditions   Drawing from recent Vibrant Villages 

project, summarize relevant plans, reports, and data to describe current conditions in Irasville 

1b) Existing Conditions Analysis - Base Map - Prepare base mapping of existing facilities, 

buildings, wetlands and other natural features 

1c) Existing Conditions Analysis - Present Findings Share findings to PC, Project Website, & 

Public Meeting Presentation 

2a) Community Development Goals – Identify - Coordinate with Steering Committee, PC, & SB to 

identify specific development goals (consultant & staff) 

2b) Community Development Goals – Articulate - Share goals and hear feedback from PC/SC (post 

to Project Website) 

3a) Wetland Enhancement Opportunities – Identify - Based on existing Irasville wetland rankings 

(functions and values), identify areas for restoration, expansion, and encroachment (no site visit 

anticipated) 

3b) Wetland Enhancement – Prioritize - Develop a prioritized list and map of wetland restoration, 

expansion, and encroachment 

3c) Wetland Enhancement - Implementation Identify responsible parties for wetland restoration, 

expansion, and easement holding. 

4a) Community Engagement - Steering Committee - Develop and facilitate a project steering 

committee consisting of Planning Commission, Selectboard representative, PZA, and local 

stakeholders. 

4b) Community Engagement – Website - Develop an informative and engaging project website that 

tells the context and story of prior planning efforts (including wastewater plans, flood resilience 

efforts, bylaw modernization) 

4c) Community Engagement – Charrette - Informed by wetlands opportunities and constraints, host 

a design charrette to identify village design ideas and priorities for Irasville 

4d) Community Engagement – Materials - Include educational materials and discussions as well as 

sketchwork and visioning exercises to articulate design vision and goals for Irasville 

5a) Design - Charrette Refinement - Working with project advisory committee, refine initial design 

from charrette (anticipated at one overhead sketch and one perspective sketch). 



  

 

 

5b) Design – Feedback - Put initial design into an online community survey to receive resident 

feedback 

5c) Design - Design Refinement - Based on survey results and input from Steering Committee, 

refine and finalize design based on resident/committee feedback 

6a) Strategic Recommendations - Prepare recommendations for advancing and implementing design 

and wetland considerations in Irasville, including bylaw changes, circulation, stormwater, wetland 

improvements, and wayfinding. Develop a concise, graphically-rich planning document. 

 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

 
All responses to the RFQ shall include the following information: 

 

1. Cover Letter - A letter of interest for the project. 

2. Statement of Qualifications and Staffing – Provide a qualifications profile of the lead 

consultant and sub-consultants, including indication of the lead consultant, the proposed 

role of each consultant on the team. Also provide detailed information on each consultant, 

including the name of the firm, year established, and contact information. 

3. Summaries of relevant projects – Describe relevant experience on similar projects for each 

firm and list the work experience of the individuals expected to be involved in the project. 

Include a minimum of three (3) professional references for whom a similar project has 

been completed within the last ten (10) years. 

4. Page Limit - The proposal, encompassing items 1-3 above, shall not exceed 15 double-

sided pages (30 total pages) including cover letter, project lists and contacts. 

 

All information submitted becomes property of the Town of Waitsfield, Vermont.  The municipality 

of Waitsfield reserves the right to issue supplemental information or guidelines relating to the RFQ 

as well as make modifications to the RFQ or withdraw the RFQ. 
 

Respondents should submit one (1) digital copy (PDF) and five (5) printed copies of the proposal by 
March 15, 2024 to: 

Town of Waitsfield 

Attn: JB Weir, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

4144 Main Street 

Waitsfield, VT 05673 

For questions, please contact JB Weir, Planning & Zoning Administrator, at (802) 496-
2218 x 4, or via email at pza@gmavt.net.  We will respond to all questions within 48 hours.  
Both the question and response will be shared with the other consultants. 

Please expect a confirmation email upon receipt of the qualifications by the Town of 
Waitsfield. 

Selection Process  

mailto:pza@gmavt.net


  

 

 

Qualifications will be reviewed by a selection committee composed of representatives from the 

Waitsfield Planning commission, Waitsfield Selectboard, and Waitsfield community-at-large.  A 

short- list of consultants will be selected to submit detailed proposals for the project with a project 

approach, scope of services, schedule and budget with details on staffing, hourly costs and 

overhead. Proposals will be presented in-person by the consultants at interviews. 

RFQ Schedule Summary: 

 

Qualifications due March 15, 2024. 

Consultants selected for short-list: March 22, 2024 

Interviews and Proposal Presentations: April 15 – April 19, 2024 

Consultant selection by April 26, 2024 

Project work to begin May 8, 2024 

Complete project on or by November 30, 2025. 

Evaluation of Qualifications 

Respondents will be evaluated according to the following factors: 

1. Consultant Qualifications (experience with similar projects, ability to work with 
municipalities to attain desired outcomes, and knowledge of the topic) - 85% 

● Experience with master planning and wetlands analysis 

● Ability to solicit input, build community engagement, and solve problems 

creatively. 

● Knowledge of infill development and natural resource protection 

● Understanding of current housing issues, resort communities and flood resilience. 

● Proven ability to work with committees and conduct public meetings 

● Availability to begin work on project start date 

2. Quality, completeness and clarity of submission - 15% 

 

Interview Framework 

 

The Town of Waitsfield reserves the right to select the top three highly scored consultants and 

invite them for an interview. In this process, the selection committee may ask the respondents to 

give an oral presentation of their respective proposals. The purpose of this oral presentation is to 

provide an in-depth analysis of qualifications, experience in performing similar services, and an 

opportunity for the consultant to clarify or elaborate on their qualifications without restating the 

proposal. 

 

The interview and presentation is merely to present facts and explanation to the review committee 

and allow the selection committee to ask targeted questions of the consultant team. The interview 

and presentation, if deemed necessary by the review committee, will be held at the Town Offices in 



  

 

 

Waitsfield, Vermont and via Zoom. The day and time will be notified to the respondents at least one 

week prior to the meeting. All costs and expenses incurred in traveling for the purpose of interview 

and presentation shall be the responsibility of the consultant. 

 

Final Consultant Selection 

Following the selection process, one team will be selected to negotiate a final contract for services. 
The final scope of work with specified deliverables may be modified through negotiation of the 
final contract. The final project team may also be modified through negotiation of the final contract. 
Any expenses resulting from the interview and proposal process will be the sole responsibility of 
the consultant. 
 

Contract Requirements 

 

The consultant contract will be subject to the terms of Attachment D of the Municipal Planning 
Grant Agreement (Procurement Procedures and Other Grant Requirements). A sample contract 
meeting these requirements is available here. 

https://outside.vermont.gov/agency/ACCD/ACCD_Web_Docs/CD/CPR/Funding-and-Incentives/Municipal-Planning-Grant/CPR-MPG-Sample-Contract.doc
https://outside.vermont.gov/agency/ACCD/ACCD_Web_Docs/CD/CPR/Funding-and-Incentives/Municipal-Planning-Grant/CPR-MPG-Sample-Contract.doc


 

 

Interview Questions for Municipal Planning Project 

 
 
1. Does our schedule seem reasonable? 

2. Is there anything you would change about the project? 

3. What does your schedule look like? Can you work on our project at the same time? 

4. What is your perspective on constructed marshes and wetlands? 

5. Goal of this project is to think differently about design and planning. By explicitly taking 
ecology as the basis of design, we can vastly diminish the environmental impacts of 
everything we do. Can you provide some examples of your past master planning that 
worked with the environment? 

6. Have you had the chance to review any of our past master plans? Can you identify anything 
that you would do differently? 

7. Have you led a community charrette before? How did it go? 

8. Can you provide an example of using environmental criteria for influencing the master 
planning process? 

9. Can you provide an example of a project your firm completed that in the end brought the 
community together? What was the most meaningful change that was created in the 
community? 

10. “Vibrant Villages” and “Healthy Waitsfield” together is the Planning Commission’s vision for a 
future downtown Irasville. This project is the third part of a three part planning process: 1) 
By-law modifications; 2) Wastewater design and 3) Master Planning. How would you 
approach this project with this understanding? 

11. Do you have experience specifically with infill development?  

12. What would be your approach for the master planning project with regard to the wetlands? 



Waitsfield Wastewater 
Planning Project 

Update #9 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
This serves as the ninth update on the Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project, a task I’m carrying out in my role as 
Planning Coordination Team Lead (as articulated in the Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of 
Waitsfield and the Mad River Valley Planning District for the Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project, 3.30.23). The 
purpose of these updates is to ensure the Waitsfield Selectboard and Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project Team 
Members are abreast of project status and developments, summarizing activities over the preceding weeks. Other 
updates in this series consist of Update #1 (4.14.23), Update #2 (5.5.23), Update #3 (5.26.23), Update #4 (7.5.23), 
Update #5 (8.11.23), Update #6 (9.8.23), Update #7 (12.18.23), & Update #8 (1.19.24). 
 
Recent Activities 
Project Coordination Team (PCT) 

• Meetings: 1.22, 1.29, 2.5, 2.12, 2.20, & 2.26 
• Activities 

o Meeting weekly to coordinate various project tasks and team activities. 
o In light of the project MOU between Waitsfield and MRVPD outlining Project Management duties ending 

on 3.5.24, the PCT has been focusing on the subsequent transition of responsibilities. While Joshua 
Schwartz will no longer be serving as PCT Lead after this date, MRVPD staff is dedicated to supporting the 
project through the next year. In the spring (March – June), that role will include supporting outreach 
and engagement efforts led by the Municipal Project Manager and the broader Waitsfield Planning 
Project Team. A check-in between the parties in late June will fine-tune subsequent needs and supports, 
for which MRVPD is committed to. 

o The PCT has developed a recommendation for hiring a Municipal Project Manager through the spring and 
into the summer, included as part of the 3.4 Selectboard packet.  

 
Engineering/Technical Team (ETT) 

• Meetings: 1.24, 1.31, 2.7, 2.14, 2.21, & 2.28 
• Activities 

o ETT members have been undertaking property owner engagement activities over the past month and a 
half. The response has been overwhelmingly positive. As of 2.29, the project team has secured verbal 
sign-up interest from 95% of contacted parcel owners, representing 38,857 gpd, or 44%, of the project’s 
estimated capacity. Similar conversations are underway for locations of critical easements. 

o On 1.4 Jonathan Harries, USDA RD State Engineer, provided comments on the Final Draft PER that had 
been sent to him on 12.6. A follow-up meeting with Jon Harries and ETT members took place on 2.7, and 

To: Waitsfield Selectboard 

From: Joshua Schwartz, MRV Planning District 

CC: Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project Team Members 
Annie Decker-Dell’Isola, Waitsfield Town Admin. 
JB Weir, Waitsfield Planning & Zoning Admin. 
Randy Brittingham, Waitsfield Town Treasurer/Grant Admin. 
Bob Cook, Waitsfield Planning Commissioner 
Chach Curtis, Waitsfield Selectboard Member 
Robin Morris, Waitsfield Water Commissioner 
Jon Ashley, DuBois & King 

Date: February 29, 2024 

Re: 
 

Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project Update #9 



 

 2 

after subsequent dialogue as an ETT, a draft response addressing USDA RD’s comments was emailed to 
Jonathon Harries on 2.29.  

o The project’s Environmental Information Document (EID) was submitted to DEC on 1.23.  
o 30% Final Design is underway. Recent ETT meetings have focused on advanced treatment technology 

selection process, operations considerations, tank and pump station locations, VDHP archeology 
requirements, and more. 

 
Funding Team (FT) 

• Meetings: 1.20 & 2.12 
• Activities 

o As a result of funding eligibility for State ARPA Wastewater and USDA RD programs, the project team 
recommended a bond vote date of 6.11. On 1.22 the Selectboard selected this date.  

o VT Pollution Control Grant 
§ Waitsfield’s project is anticipated to have a favorable listing for VT Pollution Control Grant funding 

in the soon to be released SFY25 Intended Use Plan. Recent dialogue with DEC staff has 
highlighted the need to further understand potential timing for such funding.  

o State Village Wastewater ARPA Grant 
§ Waitsfield’s project is anticipated to have a favorable listing for State Village Wastewater ARPA 

funding in the soon to be released SFY25 Intended Use Plan. Recent dialogue with DEC staff has 
identified that the town may be eligible for more funding from this source than previously 
anticipated.   

o Neighborhood Development Area 
§ MRVPD staff have coordinated with the Waitsfield ZA in developing a draft application for 

Neighborhood Development Area (NDA) Designation for Irasville, which includes extensive 
mapping. The draft was sent to DHCD staff for review on 2.23. Baring this feedback, the intent is to 
submit the NDA application in March. Amongst other benefits, an NDA designation would make 
Irasville eligible for CWSRF subsidy to undertake Step 2 60% Design (anticipated to commence in 
July 2024) as well as other funding opportunities for the construction phase. 

o USDA Rural Development 
§ Project members have continued communication with Misty Sinsigalli, NH/VT Area Director. 
§ An application for USDA RD funding is currently being drafted, to be submitted in advance of their 

4.12 deadline.   
o Congressional Discretionary Spending 

§ JB Weir has been in touch with congressional representative staff regarding CDS timelines. 
Applications are anticipated to be released in late March to early April.   

o Anticipating the draft version of the State’s SFY25 Intended Use Plan in later March, which will provide 
info regarding rankings for related grant eligibility.   

 
Public Outreach Team (POT) 

• Meetings: 1.29, 2.6, 2.16, & 2.20 
• Activity 

o A full project engagement strategy has been developed, which includes communication elements and an 
implementation timeline. 

o On 2.22 the town was notified that its application to the Small Grants for Smart Growth competitive 
grant round had received full funding. The program is being run by the Vermont Natural Resources 
Council and the Preservation Trust of Vermont to fund local initiatives for flood-resilient community 
development. The $5k in funding will support the town’s efforts to effectively communicate the tenets of 
the Waitsfield Community Wastewater Project and educate the public about the importance of municipal 
wastewater and how it can positively influence the public & environmental health of the community.  

o Public engagement efforts kicked off on 2.16 with the publishing of a new webpage serving as the one-
stop for all info related to the Waitsfield Community Wastewater Project (WCWP).  

o https://www.waitsfieldvt.us/waitsfield-community-wastewater-project/  
§ Consists of three sections 

https://www.waitsfieldvt.us/waitsfield-community-wastewater-project/


 

 3 

§ Information/Summary 
§ Landing page providing overview, the Why, What, & How.  

§ Frequently Asked Questions 
§ Numerous questions related to project specifics and funding answered with detail. 

Additional questions to be added as they come up. 
§ Resources 

§ All project documents, summaries, planning project updates, reports, presentations, 
and associated webpages. 

§ Underlying challenges with the town’s website have hampered the full functionality of the WCWP 
webpage. The town’s new website is planned to go live in mid-March, which will include full 
functionality of the WCWP portions.  

o A project overview document has been completed; a copy is attached. It is also available on the WCWP 
webpage.  

§ Direct link: https://waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Copy-of-One_Pager_V7.png 
o On 2.23 MRVPD staff had a meeting with a prospective videographer for the purpose of developing an 

education project video.  
o MRVPD staff have developed a draft WCWP Story Map to be added to the WCWP webpage. A Story Map 

is a web-based application that will allow sharing project maps in the context of narrative text. 
o MRVPD staff are creating a draft mailer highlighting project elements and announcing the 1st public 

meeting. 
o OT members are currently working to schedule the first project public meeting, which is intended to 

include project partners and funders. 
o Property owner engagement activities have been in action by ETT members since mid-January. 

Approximately 30% of property owners within the proposed service area have been contacted to date. 
The response has been overwhelmingly positive. 

 
Near-Term Activities 

• Continue Property Owner Outreach  
• Revamped Town Website w/ WCWP content live 
• Select 1st Public Meeting Date 
• Story Map live 
• USDA RD Application 
• CDS Applications 

https://waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/Copy-of-One_Pager_V7.png






Waitsfield Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                            Page  1 

February 20, 2024 

TOWN OF WAITSFIELD, VERMONT 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, February 20, 2024 
 Draft 

 
Members Present:  Kevin Anderson, Beth Cook, Bob Cook, Emma Hanson, AnnMarie Harmon, Alice 
Peal, Jonathan Ursprung 
Staff Present: JB Weir, Planning and Zoning Administrator 
Others Present:   

II. Regular Business.  
1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by Alice. The meeting was held in person at the Town 
Offices and remotely via Zoom.   
 
2. Review agenda for addition, removal, or adjustment of any items. 
No adjustments were made to the agenda. 
 
3.  Public Forum. 
Nobody present requested time to address the Commission. 
 
4.  Approval of Minutes 
The minutes of February 6, 2024 were amended to more accurately reflect dates included in the RFQ, 

and then approved. 

5.  MPG RFQ 
JB noted that the RFQ was published this week, and outlined the places where it has been posted.  

Three replies have already been received.  JB also reported that he had heard from an individual 

associated with the bond bank that works with area grant funding, who informed JB that a potential 

grant from the Leahy Institute was being explored, which would potentially be a funding source for 

implementing the tasks that result from the MPG work.  Alice noted that the State wetlands 

remapping project is moving to this area in 2024, and that the State’s Hazard Mitigation Program is 

rewriting some requirements which may lead to their being more involved in local flood mitigation 

efforts.  (FEMA mapping efforts have not yet reached the Winooski Basin, but should be addressing 

this area in upcoming years.)  

AnnMarie reported on the steering committee formation, noting that Beth has offered to be on the 

committee for the candidate interview/selection process.  AnnMarie has emailed Sean Lawson, 

Kaziah Haviland, and Brian Shupe, inviting them to join; she will also reach out to Luke Foley.  Emma 

expressed interest in joining meetings when she is able. 

Bob noted some concern regarding balancing commercial needs through the MPG work, indicating 

that the RFQ language skirts the issue to some degree even though Waitsfield has been the 

commercial center of the MRV.  It was agreed to make this aspect of the MPG work more clear 

during the interview process, and Bob indicated that he would be interested in being peripherally 

involved in the recruitment phase of the RFQ. 



Waitsfield Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                            Page  2 

February 20, 2024 

Alice pointed out that steering committee discussions will come to the full PC for decision making, 

and concurred that commercial activity needs to be included in the mix during the MPG work.  JB 

suggested that the PC spend some time discussing their vision of how the village areas will look going 

forward, as a way to help inform the interview process. 

6.  NDA Designation Application 
JB indicated that Jacob Hemerick will be reviewing the application, and that he expects to receive 

some comments from Jacob this week.  Things are still on track for review at the March meeting.  JB 

confirmed that there is no upcoming deadline to meet for grant funding, but that a successful 

application will help to inform the MPG work. 

Alice noted that she had met with CVRPC’s Christian Meyer regarding the new regional land use plan, 

which will include growth center discussions.  She explained that the current regional growth centers 

are Montpelier, Barre, and Waterbury, and noted that attributes such as availability of public 

transportation are part of these designations.  Alice has asked about the possibility of designating 

‘major’ and ‘minor’ growth centers, and has also discussed the seasonality aspect with Christian.  

Alice will share the associated report that is to be delivered to the legislature when the draft is ready.     

7.  Wastewater Planning Project Recap 
JB noted that outreach to landowners and other public engagement strategies are underway.  The 
USDA/RD application, due at the end of April, requires that the level of interest in connecting to the 
system be reported; so far landowner responses have all been positive.  JB indicated that social 
media information is ready to be launched, and that a short overview, along with printed materials, 
will be provided at Town Meeting. 
 
He also explained that Waitsfield’s CWSRF PPL ranking will likely be improving, due to the progress 
made as well as the relative lack of progress in other towns whose projects are not as close to 
funding/construction.  
 
Bob reported that some significant changes in location of pump stations have been outlined as the 
system plans become more refined; conversations with affected landowners are underway. 
 
8.  Updates from the PC Chair 
CVRPC 
Floodplain and Wetland remapping 
LHMP and State HMP 
Alice noted that she had covered most of this information during the course of the meeting.  She 
indicated that the public hearing for the LHMP is scheduled for February 29. 
 
Upcoming changes to the PC configuration were discussed; Alice will no longer be serving as Chair, 
Kevin will not be seeking reappointment, and a new representative to the MRVPD is needed. 
 
9.  Other Business 

No other business was taken up by the PC. 

10.  Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:29 pm. 



Waitsfield Planning Commission Minutes                                                                                                            Page  3 

February 20, 2024 

Respectfully submitted,  
Carol Chamberlin, Recording Secretary 



 

 
4144 Main Street, Waitsfield, VT 05673 • P: (802) 496-2218 • F: (802) 496-9284 • W: www.waitsfieldvt.us 

TOWN OF WAITSFIELD 
 

TOWN OF WAITSFIELD 

VACANCY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

Are you interested in helping to shape the future growth and development of Waitsfield?  The 

Waitsfield Selectboard is seeking individuals interested in filling the seat of an expired two-year 

term on the Planning Commission through March 2026.   Please submit a letter of interest to the 

Waitsfield Selectboard, 4144 Main Street, Waitsfield VT 05673 or by e-mail to 

townadmin@gmavt.net. For more information, contact Planning & Zoning Administrator J.B. 

Weir at 496-2218 or visit https://waitsfieldvt.us/planning-commission/. 

Current projects include a Master Plan for Irasville and promoting the municipal wastewater 

project. 

 

J.B. Weir 

Planning & Zoning Administrator 
 

 
4144 Main Street, Waitsfield, VT 05673 • P: (802) 496-2218 • F: (802) 496-9284 • W: www.waitsfieldvt.us 

 

 
 

mailto:townadmin@madriver.com
https://waitsfieldvt.us/planning-commission/


From: Vermont Planners Association on behalf of Alex Weinhagen
To: VPA@LIST.UVM.EDU
Subject: [VPA] VPA Legislative Summary - 2/26/24
Date: Monday, February 26, 2024 2:13:19 PM
Attachments: image001.gif

s311_calendar_022024.pdf
s213_calendar_022324.pdf

VPA Members,
The VT Legislature continues to churn on several bills with a planning nexus.  VPA’s Legislative
Committee remains focused on housing and permit reform bills, while also tracking bills on flood
hazard area permitting, accessory on-farm businesses, etc.  A lot will happen in the next two weeks –
the run up to “Crossover”, which is the date when bills need to be voted out of their committee of
origin in order to stay alive.  This year, crossover is March 15 for most bills, and March 22 for money
bills.
 
Act 250 Reform (with a dash of municipal zoning)
Three big bills (S.308, H.687, S.311) are slated to become one in the Senate Natural Resources &
Energy Committee – sometime after crossover.  Senate Economic Development, Housing and
General Affairs finished work on their Be Home Bill, which was known as committee draft bill DR 24-
0067, and has since become S.311.  They wrapped up work, and passed it out of committee on
February 16.  See attached for the latest version.  It was sent to Senate Natural Resources & Energy,
which has been working on a different Act 250 reform bill (S.308).  Rather than merge these two
very different Senate bills now, the Committee plans to wait for delivery of a companion bill from
the House (H.687).  The House Environment & Energy Committee will continue work on H.687 this
week, in the hopes of passing it out of committee prior to crossover, and having it voted on by the
full House thereafter.  Although eyes will be on H.687 in the House for the next week or two, it
appears the real “sausage making” will be later on the Senate side, when Senate Natural Resources
& Energy will try to merge and blend the three bills into one.
 
All three of these bills envision Act 250 jurisdictional changes based on location – e.g., exemptions
and higher thresholds in planned growth areas (Tier 1A, Tier 1B areas); increased jurisdiction
throughout most of the state (Tier 2 areas); automatic jurisdiction in highly sensitive resource areas
(Tier 3 areas).  These changes would be phased in over a couple years, with collaboration between
regional planning commissions and municipalities on the mapping of the different Tier areas.  All
three envision a return of a “road rule” Act 250 trigger, in which projects with more than a certain
linear distance of roads and driveways would require an Act 250 permit – regardless of how many
lots or dwelling units are proposed.
 
S.311 includes much more robust Act 250 exemptions for residential development – both in the
immediate term, and as part of the future Tier-based jurisdictional system.  The full scope of these
exemptions is complicated, difficult to summarize, and will likely be revised dramatically by the
Senate Natural Resources & Energy Committee.  S.311 also includes a dash of municipal zoning
reform/pre-emption.  These are easier to detail, and include:
 
·        Duplexes – Builds on last year’s HOME Act (Act 47, S.100), to require that duplexes be a

permitted use and be treated the same as single unit dwellings with regard to land area (i.e.,

mailto:VPA@list.uvm.edu
mailto:aweinhagen@HINESBURG.ORG
mailto:VPA@LIST.UVM.EDU




- 289 -


Sec. 1. SHORT TITLE


This act shall be known and may be cited as the “BE Home Act.”


* * * Act 250 * * *


Sec. 2. 10 V.S.A. § 6001 is amended to read:


§ 6001. DEFINITIONS


As used in this chapter:


* * *


(3)(A) “Development” means each of the following:


* * *


(iv)(I) The construction of housing projects such as cooperatives,
condominiums, or dwellings, or construction or maintenance of mobile homes
or mobile home parks, with 10 75 or more units, constructed or maintained on
a tract or tracts of land, located within a municipality with permanent zoning
and subdivision bylaws, served by municipal sewer and water infrastructure as
defined by 24 V.S.A. § 4303, and owned or controlled by a person, within a
radius of five miles of any point on any involved land and within any
continuous period of five two years. However:


(I) A priority housing project shall constitute a development
under this subdivision (iv) only if the number of housing units in the project is:


(aa) [Repealed.]


(bb) [Repealed.]


(cc) 75 or more, in a municipality with a population of
6,000 or more but less than 10,000.


(dd) 50 or more, in a municipality with a population of less
than 6,000.


(ee) [Repealed.]


(ff) Notwithstanding subdivisions (cc) through (ee) of this
subdivision (3)(A)(iv)(I), 10 or more if the construction involves the
demolition of one or more buildings that are listed on or eligible to be listed on
the State or National Register of Historic Places. However, demolition shall
not be considered to create jurisdiction under this subdivision (ff) if the
Division for Historic Preservation has determined that the proposed demolition
will have no adverse effect, will have no adverse effect if specified conditions
are met, or will have an adverse effect that will be adequately mitigated. Any
imposed conditions shall be enforceable through a grant condition, deed



aweinhagen

Text Box

from 2/20/24 Senate notice calendaras passed out of the Senate Economic Development Committee







- 290 -


covenant, or other legally binding document.


(II) The determination of jurisdiction over a priority housing
project shall count only the housing units included in that discrete project The
construction of housing projects such as cooperatives, condominiums, or
dwellings, or construction or maintenance of mobile homes or mobile home
parks, with 30 or more units, constructed or maintained on a tract or tracts of
land owned or controlled by a person, located within a municipality with
permanent zoning and subdivision bylaws, and within any continuous period
of two years.


(III) Housing units in a priority housing project shall not count
toward determining jurisdiction over any other project The construction of
housing projects such as cooperatives, condominiums, or dwellings, or
construction or maintenance of mobile homes or mobile home parks, with
10 or more units, constructed or maintained on a tract or tracts of land owned
or controlled by a person, within a located municipality without permanent
zoning and subdivision bylaws, and within any continuous period of two years.


* * *


(xi) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, until
July 1, 2026, the construction of housing projects such as cooperatives,
condominiums, dwellings, or mobile homes, with 25 or more units,
constructed or maintained on a tract or tracts of land, located entirely within a
designated downtown development district, a designated neighborhood
development area, a designated village center with permanent zoning and
subdivision bylaws, or a designated growth center, owned or controlled by a
person, within a radius of five miles of any point on any involved land and
within any continuous period of five years. For purposes of this subsection, the
construction of four units or fewer of housing in an existing structure shall
only count as one unit towards the total number of units.


* * *


(D) The word “development” does not include:


* * *


(viii)(I) The construction of a priority housing project in a
municipality with a population of 10,000 or more.


(II) If the construction of a priority housing project in this
subdivision (3)(D)(viii) involves demolition of one or more buildings that are
listed or eligible to be listed on the State or National Register of Historic
Places, this exemption shall not apply unless the Division for Historic
Preservation has made the determination described in subdivision (A)(iv)(I)(ff)







- 291 -


of this subdivision (3) and any imposed conditions are enforceable in the
manner set forth in that subdivision.


(III) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
contrary, until July 1, 2026, the construction of a priority housing project
located entirely within a designated downtown development district,
designated neighborhood development area, or a designated growth center
Hotels and motels converted to permanently affordable housing developments
as defined in 24 V.S.A. § 4303(2).


* * *


(35) “Priority housing project” means a discrete project located on a
single tract or multiple contiguous tracts of land that consists exclusively of
mixed income housing or mixed use, or any combination thereof, and is
located entirely within a designated downtown development district,
designated new town center, designated growth center, or designated
neighborhood development area under 24 V.S.A. chapter 76A. [Repealed.]


* * *


Sec. 3. 10 V.S.A. § 6081 is amended to read:


§ 6081. PERMITS REQUIRED; EXEMPTIONS


* * *


(t) No permit or permit amendment is required for the construction of
improvements for an accessory dwelling unit as defined in 24 V.S.A. § 4303.


* * *


(aa) No permit amendment is required for the construction of
improvements for converting a structure used for a commercial purpose to
29 or fewer housing units.


(bb) No permit amendment is required for development or subdivisions,
located on a tract or tracts of land, owned or controlled by a person, within a
designated center and within a radius of one-quarter mile of the boundary of a
designated village center and one-half mile of the boundary of a designated
center.


Sec. 4. 10 V.S.A. § 6084(f) is added to read:


(f) The applicant shall post a sign provided by the District Commission on
the subject property in a visible location 14 days prior to the hearing on the
application and until the permit is issued or denied. The District Commission
shall provide the sign that shall include a general description of the project, the
date and place of the hearing, the identification number of the application and







- 292 -


the internet address, and the contact information for the District Commission.
The design of the signs shall be consistent throughout the State and
prominently state “This Property has applied for an Act 250 Permit.”


Sec. 5. 10 V.S.A. § 6086(d) is amended to read:


(d) State and municipal permits.


(1) The District Commission shall not delay issuing a permit under this
chapter on the grounds that the development or subdivision has not received
one or more other required State permits or approvals; however, it may include
a condition that construction may not commence until such other required
permits or approvals are received.


(2) The Natural Resources Board may by rule shall allow the acceptance
of a permit or permits or approval of any State agency with respect to
subdivisions (a)(1) through (5) of this section or a permit or permits of a
specified municipal government with respect to subdivisions (a)(1) through (7)
and (9) and (10) of this section, or a combination of such permits or approvals,
in lieu of evidence by the applicant. A District Commission, in accordance
with rules adopted by the Board, shall accept determinations issued by a
development review board under the provisions of 24 V.S.A. § 4420, with
respect to local Act 250 review of municipal impacts. The acceptance of such
approval, positive determinations, permit, or permits shall create a
presumption constitute conclusive evidence that the application is not
detrimental to the public health and welfare with respect to the specific
requirement for which it is accepted. In the case of approvals and permits
issued by the Agency of Natural Resources, technical determinations of the
Agency shall be accorded substantial deference by the Commissions.


(3) The acceptance of negative determinations issued by a development
review board under the provisions of 24 V.S.A. § 4420, with respect to local
Act 250 review of municipal impacts, shall create a presumption that the
application is detrimental to the public health and welfare with respect to the
specific requirement for which it is accepted. Any determinations, positive or
negative, under the provisions of 24 V.S.A. § 4420 shall create presumptions
only to the extent that the impacts under the criteria are limited to the
municipality issuing the decision. Such a rule may be revoked or amended
pursuant to the procedures set forth in 3 V.S.A. chapter 25, the Vermont
Administrative Procedure Act. The rules adopted by the Board shall not
approve the acceptance of a permit or approval of such an agency or a permit
of a municipal government unless it satisfies the appropriate requirements of
subsection (a) of this section.







- 293 -


Sec. 6. 10 V.S.A. § 6086(h) is added to read:


(h) Compliance self-certification. The District Commission may require
that a person who receives a permit under this chapter report on a regular
schedule to the District Commission on whether or not the person has
complied with and is in compliance with the conditions required in that permit.
The report shall be made on a form provided by the Board and shall be
notarized and contain a self-certification to the truth of statements.


Sec. 7. REPORT; MITIGATION OF PRIMARY AGRICULTURAL SOILS


On or before January 15, 2025, the Department of Housing and Community
Development, after consultation with the Agency of Agriculture, Food, and
Markets, the Vermont Housing and Conservation Board, and members from
the regional planning commissions, shall submit a report to the Senate
Committee on Economic Development, Housing, and General Affairs and the
House Committee on Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry
recommending appropriate updates to the ratios of mitigation for primary
agricultural soil under 10 V.S.A. chapter 151.


Sec. 8. REPEALS


(a) 10 V.S.A. § 6081(o) and (p) are repealed.


(b) 30 V.S.A. § 55 (priority housing projects; stretch code) is repealed.


(c) 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 16a (Act 250 exemption
requirements) is repealed.


(d) 10 V.S.A. § 6001(3)(A)(iv) and 10 V.S.A. § 6081(bb) are repealed on
June 30, 2029.


* * * Municipal Zoning * * *


Sec. 9. 24 V.S.A. § 4382 is amended to read:


§ 4382. THE PLAN FOR A MUNICIPALITY


(a) A plan for a municipality shall be consistent with the goals established
in section 4302 of this title and compatible with approved plans of other
municipalities in the region and with the regional plan and shall include the
following:


* * *


(10) A housing element that shall include a recommended program for
public and private actions to address housing needs and targets as identified by
the regional planning commission pursuant to subdivision 4348a(a)(9) of this
title. The program should shall use data on year-round and seasonal dwellings







- 294 -


and include specific actions to address the housing needs of persons with low
income and persons with moderate income and account for permitted
residential development as described in section 4412 of this title.


* * *


Sec. 10. 24 V.S.A. § 4412 is amended to read:


§ 4412. REQUIRED PROVISIONS AND PROHIBITED EFFECTS


Notwithstanding any existing bylaw, the following land development
provisions shall apply in every municipality:


(1) Equal treatment of housing and required provisions for affordable
housing.


* * *


(D) Bylaws shall designate appropriate districts and reasonable
regulations for multiunit or multifamily dwellings. No bylaw shall have the
effect of excluding these multiunit or multifamily dwellings from the
municipality. In any district that allows year-round residential development,
duplexes shall be an allowed a permitted use with the same dimensional
standards as that are not more restrictive than is required for a single-unit
dwelling, including no additional land or lot area than would be required for a
single-unit dwelling. In any district that is served by municipal sewer and
water infrastructure that allows residential development, multiunit dwellings
with four or fewer units shall be a permitted use on lots that are at least 1/3 of
an acre in size with an allowed density of up to 12 units per acre, unless that
district specifically requires multiunit structures to have more than four
dwelling units.


* * *


(12) In any area served by municipal sewer and water infrastructure that
allows residential development, bylaws shall establish lot and building
dimensional standards that allow five or more dwelling units per acre for each
allowed residential use, and density. Any lot that is smaller than one acre but
granted a variance of not more than 10 percent shall be treated as one acre for
the purposes of this subsection. Density and minimum lot size standards for
multiunit dwellings shall not be more restrictive than those required for single-
family dwellings.


(13) In any area served by municipal sewer and water infrastructure that
allows residential development, bylaws shall permit any affordable housing
development, as defined in subdivision 4303(2) of this title, including mixed-
use development, to exceed density limitations for residential developments by







- 295 -


an additional 40 percent, rounded up to the nearest whole unit, which shall
include exceeding maximum height limitations by one floor, provided that the
structure complies with the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code.


(14) No zoning or subdivision bylaw shall have the effect of prohibiting
unrelated occupants from residing in the same dwelling unit.


Sec. 11. 24 V.S.A. § 4413 is amended to read:


§ 4413. LIMITATIONS ON MUNICIPAL BYLAWS


(a)(1) The following uses may be regulated only with respect to location,
size, height, building bulk, yards, courts, setbacks, density of buildings, off-
street parking, loading facilities, traffic, noise, lighting, landscaping, and
screening requirements, and only to the extent that regulations do not have the
effect of interfering with the intended functional use:


(A) State- or community-owned and -operated institutions and
facilities;


(B) public and private schools and other educational institutions
certified by the Agency of Education;


(C) churches and other places of worship, convents, and parish
houses;


(D) public and private hospitals;


(E) regional solid waste management facilities certified under
10 V.S.A. chapter 159;


(F) hazardous waste management facilities for which a notice of
intent to construct has been received under 10 V.S.A. § 6606a; and


(G) emergency shelters; and


(H) hotels and motels converted to permanently affordable housing
developments.


* * *


Sec. 12. 24 V.S.A. § 4428 is added to read:


§ 4428. PARKING BYLAWS


(a) Parking regulation. Consistent with section 4414 of this title and with
this section, a municipality may regulate parking.


(b) Tandem parking. Tandem parking shall count toward residential
parking space requirements. A municipality may require that tandem spaces
are not shared between different dwelling units. As used in this subsection,







- 296 -


“tandem parking” means a narrow parking space that can accommodate two or
more vehicles parked in a single-file line.


(c) Parking space size standards. For the purpose of residential parking, a
municipality shall define a standard parking space as not larger than nine feet
by 18 feet, however a municipality may allow a portion of parking spaces to
be smaller for compact cars or similar use. A municipality may require a
larger space wherever American with Disabilities Act-compliant spaces are
required.


(d) Existing nonconforming parking. A municipality shall allow an
existing nonconforming parking space to count toward the parking
requirement of an existing residential building if new residential units are
added to the building.


(e) Adjacent lots. A municipality may allow a person with a valid legal
agreement for use of parking spaces in an adjacent or nearby lot to count
toward the parking requirement of a residential building.


Sec. 13. 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 1 is amended to read:


Sec. 1. 24 V.S.A. § 4414 is amended to read:


§ 4414. ZONING; PERMISSIBLE TYPES OF REGULATIONS


* * *


(4) Parking and loading facilities. A municipality may adopt provisions
setting forth standards for permitted and required facilities for off-street
parking and loading, which may vary by district and by uses within each
district. In any district that is served by municipal sewer and water
infrastructure that allows residential uses, a municipality shall not require more
than one parking space per dwelling unit. However, a municipality may
require 1.5 parking spaces for duplexes and multiunit dwellings in areas not
served by sewer and water, and in areas that are located more than one-quarter
mile away from public parking. The number of parking spaces shall be
rounded up to the nearest whole number when calculating the total number of
spaces. These bylaws may also include provisions covering the location, size,
design, access, landscaping, and screening of those facilities. In determining
the number of parking spaces for nonresidential uses and size of parking
spaces required under these regulations, the appropriate municipal panel may
take into account the existence or availability of employer “transit pass” and
rideshare programs, public transit routes, and public parking spaces in the
vicinity of the development.


* * *







- 297 -


Sec. 14. 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 81, Sec. 10 is amended to read:


Sec. 10. 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 47 is amended to read:


Sec. 47. EFFECTIVE DATES


This act shall take effect on July 1, 2023, except that:


(1) Sec. 1 (24 V.S.A. § 4414) shall take effect on December July 1,
2024.


* * *


Sec. 15. 24 V.S.A. § 4429 is added to read:


§ 4429. LOT COVERAGE BYLAWS


A municipality shall allow for a lot coverage bonus of 10 percent on lots
that allow access to new or subdivided lots without road frontage.


Sec. 16. 24 V.S.A. § 4442 is amended to read:


§ 4442. ADOPTION OF BYLAWS AND RELATED REGULATORY
TOOLS; AMENDMENT OR REPEAL


* * *


(c) Routine adoption. A bylaw, bylaw amendment, or bylaw repeal shall
be adopted by a majority of the members of the legislative body at a meeting
that is held after the final public hearing and shall be effective 21 days after
adoption unless, by action of the legislative body, the bylaw, bylaw
amendment, or bylaw repeal is warned for adoption by the municipality by
Australian ballot at a special or regular meeting of the municipality.


* * *


Sec. 17. 24 V.S.A. § 4464 is amended to read:


§ 4464. HEARING AND NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; DECISIONS AND
CONDITIONS; ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW; ROLE OF
ADVISORY COMMISSIONS IN DEVELOPMENT REVIEW


* * *


(b) Decisions.


(1) The appropriate municipal panel may recess the proceedings on any
application pending submission of additional information. The panel should
close the evidence promptly after all parties have submitted the requested
information. The panel shall adjourn the hearing and issue a decision within
45 180 days after the adjournment of the hearing, and failure of the panel to
issue a decision within this period shall be deemed approval and shall be







- 298 -


effective on the 46th day complete application was submitted unless both the
applicant and the panel agree to waive the deadline. Decisions shall be issued
in writing and shall include a statement of the factual bases on which the
appropriate municipal panel has made its conclusions and a statement of the
conclusions. The minutes of the meeting may suffice, provided the factual
bases and conclusions relating to the review standards are provided in
conformance with this subsection.


* * *


Sec. 18. 24 V.S.A. § 4465 is amended to read:


§ 4465. APPEALS OF DECISIONS OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER


* * *


(b) As used in this chapter, an “interested person” means any one of the
following:


* * *


(4) Any 10 persons A minimum of three percent, rounded up to the
nearest whole person, of the most recent U.S. Census Bureau population
estimate of the municipality that may or may not have participated in the
proceeding or any 25 persons, who may be any combination of voters,
residents, or real property owners within a municipality listed in subdivision
(2) of this subsection who, by signed petition to the appropriate municipal
panel of a municipality, the plan or a bylaw of which is at issue in any appeal
brought under this title, allege that any relief requested by a person under this
title, if granted, will not be in accord with the policies, purposes, or terms of
the plan or bylaw of that municipality. This petition to the appropriate
municipal panel must designate one person to serve as the representative of the
petitioners regarding all matters related to the appeal. For purposes of this
subdivision, an appeal shall not include the character of the area affected if the
project has a residential component that includes affordable housing.


* * *


(d) For the purposes of this section, an appeal shall not include the
following:


(1) Any residential and mixed-use development containing up to
25 dwelling units within areas served by municipal sewer and water
infrastructure.


(2) Any permitted residential and mixed-use development that does not
require conditional use review. Development requiring conditional use review
may be appealed.







- 299 -


(3) Any housing or mixed-use development located within a designated
center in a zoning district that allows residential development.


Sec. 19. 24 V.S.A. § 4471 is amended to read:


§ 4471. APPEAL TO ENVIRONMENTAL DIVISION


(a) Participation required. An interested person who has participated in a
municipal regulatory proceeding authorized under this title may appeal a
decision rendered in that proceeding by an appropriate municipal panel to the
Environmental Division, except, pursuant to subdivision 4464(b)(4) of this
title, that not every person of the three percent of the population needs to have
participated. Participation in a local regulatory proceeding shall consist of
offering, through oral or written testimony, evidence or a statement of concern
related to the subject of the proceeding. An appeal from a decision of the
appropriate municipal panel, or from a decision of the municipal legislative
body under subsection 4415(d) of this title, shall be taken in such manner as
the Supreme Court may by rule provide for appeals from State agencies
governed by 3 V.S.A. §§ 801–816, unless the decision is an appropriate
municipal panel decision which that the municipality has elected to be subject
to review on the record.


* * *


Sec. 20. 10 V.S.A. § 8504 is amended to read:


§ 8504. APPEALS TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL DIVISION


* * *


(k) Limitations on appeals. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
section:


(1) there shall be no appeal from a District Commission decision when
the Commission has issued a permit and no hearing was requested or held, or
no motion to alter was filed following the issuance of an administrative
amendment;


(2) a municipal decision regarding whether a particular application
qualifies for a recorded hearing under 24 V.S.A. § 4471(b) shall not be subject
to appeal;


(3) if a District Commission issues a partial decision under subsection
6086(b) of this title, any appeal of that decision must be taken within 30 days
of the date of that decision; and







- 300 -


(4) it shall be the goal of the Environmental Division to hear a case
regarding appeals of an appropriate municipal panel under 24 V.S.A. chapter
117 within 60 days following the case being filed with the Division and issue a
decision within 90 days following the close of the hearing on the case.


* * *


Sec. 21. SUPERIOR COURT; POSITION; APPROPRIATION


(a) There is established one permanent judge in the Superior Court in fiscal
year 2025.


(b) In fiscal year 2025, $168,000.00 General Fund is appropriated to the
Superior Court for the new judge created in subsection (a) of this section.


* * * Downtown Tax Credits * * *


Sec. 22. 32 V.S.A. § 5930ee is amended to read:


§ 5930ee. LIMITATIONS


Beginning in fiscal year 2010 and thereafter, the State Board may award tax
credits to all qualified applicants under this subchapter, provided that:


(1) the total amount of tax credits awarded annually, together with sales
tax reallocated under section 9819 of this title, does not exceed $3,000,000.00
$5,000,000.00;


* * *


* * * New Act 250 Tiers * * *


Sec. 23. 10 V.S.A. § 6001 is amended to read:


§ 6001. DEFINITIONS


As used in this chapter:


* * *


(3)(A) “Development” means each of the following:


* * *


(vi) The construction of improvements for commercial, industrial,
or residential use at or above the elevation of 2,500 feet or within a Tier 3 area.


* * *


(xii) The construction of a road, roads, driveway, or driveways,
which in combination is greater than 2,000 feet and any single road or
driveway is greater than 1,000 feet, to provide access to or within a tract or
tracts of land of more than one acre owned or controlled by a person.







- 301 -


(I) For the purposes of determining jurisdiction under this
subdivision (xii), any tract or tracts of land that will be provided access by the
road or driveway is involved land.


(II) As used in this subdivision (xii), “road” shall include any
new road or upgrade of a Class 4 highway by a person other than a
municipality, including a road that will be transferred to or maintained by a
municipality after its construction or upgrade. For the purposes of this
subdivision (II), routine maintenance of a Class 4 highway or stormwater
improvement required pursuant to section 1264 of this title shall not constitute
an “upgrade.”


(aa) Routine maintenance shall include replacing a culvert
or ditch, applying new stone, grading, or making repairs after adverse weather.


(bb) Routine maintenance shall not include changing the
size of the road, changing the location or layout of the road, or adding
pavement.


(III) For the purpose of determining the length under this
subdivision (xii), the length of all roads and driveways within the tract or tracts
of land constructed within any continuous period of 10 years after October 1,
2024 shall be included.


(IV) This subdivision (xii) shall not apply to


(aa) a road constructed for a municipal, county, or State
purpose; a utility corridor of an electric transmission or distribution company;
or a road located entirely within a designated area; or


(bb) a road used primarily for farming or forestry purposes
unless used for residential purpose.


* * *


(50) “Tier 1A” means an area as defined by the Board and mapped by a
municipality’s maps.


(51) “Tier 1B” means an area as defined by the Board and mapped by a
municipality’s maps.


(52) “Tier 2” means an area as defined by the Board and mapped by a
municipality’s maps.


(53) “Tier 3” means an area as defined by the Board and mapped by the
regional land use maps, that contains ecologically important natural resources.







- 302 -


Sec. 24. 10 V.S.A. § 6032 is added to read:


§ 6032. DESIGNATION OF TIERS 1, 2, AND 3


(a) On or before December 15, 2024, the Board shall submit to the General
Assembly a report on proposed definitions for the Tiers. These definitions
shall address the need for a healthy vacancy rate and the conservation goals
established in 10 V.S.A. chapter 89. In developing the definitions, the Board
shall conduct a public engagement process with a broad spectrum of
Vermonters, including a focus on engaging renters, unhoused persons, and
historically marginalized groups to hear input and receive feedback on the
proposed Tiers.


(b) On or before October 1, 2025, the Board shall adopt guidance on the
process for designating Tiers 1, 2, and 3. The guidance shall at a minimum
include provisions for the following:


(1) Municipalities develop the application for designation and proposed
maps of the areas and submit it to the regional planning commission for
comment and approval. The regional planning commission shall then review
the proposal to ensure it is consistent with the regional plan, and provide
additional technical input and advice as needed to improve the application.


(2) If the regional planning commission concurs with the municipality’s
application, the municipality would submit the application to the Board for
approval. During this review, the regional planning commission’s concurrence
would create a presumption that the application is consistent with the regional
plan


(3) If the regional planning commission raises objections to the
municipality’s application, the municipality may choose to rework the
application and resubmit it to the regional planning commission or go ahead
and submit the application for review by the Board without regional planning
commission approval. In the later instance, the municipality would have to
demonstrate to the Board that the application is consistent with the regional
plan and explain why it chose not to rework its application.


(4) The Board would oversee a public review process, provide
opportunities for comment, and then issue a determination on the application.


(5) There shall be a process before the Board for challenging
designation decisions at the time of the certification or recertification.


(c) The Board’s guidance shall establish qualifications for Tier 1, which
shall at a minimum include:







- 303 -


(1) A municipal plan that is approved in accordance with 24 V.S.A.
§ 4350.


(2) Municipal flood hazard planning, applicable to the entire
municipality, in accordance with 24 V.S.A. § 4382(12) and the guidelines
issued by the Department pursuant to 24 V.S.A. § 2792(d).


(3) Flood hazard and river corridor bylaws, applicable to the entire
municipality, that are consistent with the standards established pursuant to
subsection 755(b) of this title (flood hazard) and subsection 1428(b) of this
title (river corridor).


(4) Permanent zoning and subdivision bylaws that do not include broad
exemptions that exclude significant private or public land development either
from requiring a municipal land use permit or from development entirely.


(5) Permitted water and wastewater systems with the capacity to support
additional development within the planned growth area. The municipality
shall have adopted consistent policies, by municipal plan and ordinance, on the
allocation, connection, and extension of water and wastewater lines that
include a defined service area to support the planned growth area.


(6) The applicable regional plan has been approved by the Board.


(d) On or before October 1, 2025, the Board shall adopt guidance
establishing the process for designating transportation corridors. The guidance
shall at a minimum include provisions for the following:


(1) A definition of transportation corridor that includes the area within
100 feet of a class 2 or class 3 highway that is served by municipal sewer and
water infrastructure.


(2) Municipalities develop the application for designation of a
transportation corridor and proposed maps of the area and submit it to the
regional planning commission for comment and approval. The regional
planning commission shall then review the proposal to ensure it is consistent
with the regional plan and provide additional technical input and advice as
needed to improve the application.


(3) A regional planning commission may apply for designation of a
transportation corridor that spans multiple municipalities.


(e) On or before October 1, 2025, the Board shall adopt guidance
establishing the process for designating Tier 3 areas. The rules shall at a
minimum include provisions for the following:







- 304 -


(1) Each respective regional planning commission would recommend a
mapping process for identifying Tier 3 areas. This shall include a process for
reviewing existing maps, such as Vermont Conservation Design and other
available science-based resources, a process for public comment, and
authorization of a statewide board to review and approve Tier 3 designations.


(2) Each regional planning commission would be primarily responsible
for conducting the mapping, in consultation with municipalities, based on
consistent and robust standards, and with additional resources and technical
support from the State. The regional planning commissions would submit
their maps to the Board for approval through a public process, with
opportunities for public comment and appeal. Municipalities shall have an
opportunity to challenge the regional planning commission’s proposed maps if
they disagree with the regional planning commission’s determinations.


(f) The regional planning commissions shall conduct an environmental
justice analysis to determine if the costs and benefits of the Tiers are
distributed equitably within municipalities and the region.


(g) On or before December 1, 2026, the Board shall adopt the necessary
maps of Tiers.


Sec. 25. 24 V.S.A. § 4382 is amended to read:


§ 4382. THE PLAN FOR A MUNICIPALITY


(a) A plan for a municipality shall be consistent with the goals established
in section 4302 of this title and compatible with approved plans of other
municipalities in the region and with the regional plan and shall include the
following:


* * *


(2) A land use plan, which shall consist of a map and statement of
present and prospective land uses, that:


* * *


(C) Identifies those areas, if any, proposed for designation under
chapter 76A of this title or 10 V.S.A. § 6032, together with, for each area
proposed for designation, an explanation of how the designation would further
the plan’s goals and the goals of section 4302 of this title, and how the area
meets the requirements for the type of designation to be sought.


* * *


Sec. 26. 10 V.S.A. § 6081 is amended to read:


§ 6081. PERMITS REQUIRED; EXEMPTIONS







- 305 -


* * *


(z) Tier exemptions.


(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary,
no permit or permit amendment is required for any subdivision, development,
or change to an existing project that is located entirely within a Tier 1A area
designated under section 6032 of this chapter.


(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary,
no permit or permit amendment is required for 75 units or fewer of housing
located entirely within a Tier 1B area or transportation corridor designated
under section 6032 of this chapter.


(3) Upon receiving notice and a copy of the permit issued by an
appropriate municipal panel pursuant to 24 V.S.A. § 4460(f), a previously
issued permit for a development or subdivision located in a planned growth
area shall remain attached to the property. However, neither the Board nor the
Agency of Natural Resources shall enforce the permit or assert amendment
jurisdiction on the tract or tracts of land unless the designation is revoked or
the municipality has not taken any action to enforce the conditions of the
permit.


* * * Taxes * * *


Sec. 27. 32 V.S.A. § 9602 is amended to read:


§ 9602. TAX ON TRANSFER OF TITLE TO PROPERTY


A tax is hereby imposed upon the transfer by deed of title to property
located in this State, or a transfer or acquisition of a controlling interest in any
person with title to property in this State. The amount of the tax equals one
and one-quarter percent of the value of the property transferred, or $1.00,
whichever is greater, except as follows:


(1) With respect to the transfer of property to be used for the principal
residence of the transferee, the tax shall be imposed at the rate of five-tenths of
one percent of the first $100,000.00 in value of the property transferred and at
the rate of one and one-quarter percent of the value of the property transferred
in excess of $100,000.00; except that no tax shall be imposed on the first
$110,000.00 $150,000.00 in value of the property transferred if the purchaser
obtains a purchase money mortgage funded in part with a homeland grant
through the Vermont Housing and Conservation Trust Fund or that the
Vermont Housing and Finance Agency or U.S. Department of Agriculture and
Rural Development has committed to make or purchase; and tax at the rate of
one and one-quarter percent shall be imposed on the value of that property in
excess of $110,000.00 $150,000.00.







- 306 -


* * *


(4) With respect to the transfer of residential property that will not be
used as the principal residence of the transferee, and for which the transferee
will not be required to provide a landlord certificate pursuant to section 6069
of this title, the tax shall be imposed at the rate of two and one-half percent of
the value of the property transferred.


Sec. 28. 10 V.S.A. § 312 is amended to read:


§ 312. CREATION OF VERMONT HOUSING AND CONSERVATION
TRUST FUND


There is created a special fund in the State Treasury to be known as the
“Vermont Housing and Conservation Trust Fund.” The Fund shall be
administered by the Board and expenditures therefrom shall only be made to
implement and effectuate the policies and purposes of this chapter. The Fund
shall be comprised composed of 60 percent of the revenue collected under
32 V.S.A. § 9602(a)(4), 50 percent of the revenue from the property transfer
tax under 32 V.S.A. chapter 231 all other subdivisions of 32 V.S.A.§ 9602(a),
and any monies from time to time appropriated to the Fund by the General
Assembly or received from any other source, private or public, approved by
the Board. Unexpended balances and any earnings shall remain in the Fund
for use in accord with the purposes of this chapter.


Sec. 29. 24 V.S.A. § 4306(a) is amended to read:


(a)(1) The Municipal and Regional Planning Fund for the purpose of
assisting municipal and regional planning commissions to carry out the intent
of this chapter is hereby created in the State Treasury.


(2) The Fund shall be composed of 23.5 percent of the revenue collected
under 32 V.S.A. § 9602(a)(4), 17 percent of the revenue from the property
transfer tax under 32 V.S.A. chapter 231 all other subdivisions of 32 V.S.A.
§ 9602 (a), and any monies from time to time appropriated to the Fund by the
General Assembly or received from any other source, private or public. All
balances at the end of any fiscal year shall be carried forward and remain in
the Fund. Interest earned by the Fund shall be deposited in the Fund.


(3) Of the revenues in the Fund, each year:


(A) 10 percent shall be disbursed to the Vermont Center for
Geographic Information;


(B) 70 percent shall be disbursed to the Secretary of Commerce and
Community Development for performance contracts with regional planning
commissions to provide regional planning services pursuant to section 4341a
of this title; and







- 307 -


(C) 20 percent shall be disbursed to municipalities.


Sec. 30. 32 V.S.A. § 435(b) shall be amended to read:


(b) The General Fund shall be composed of revenues from the following
sources:


(1) alcoholic beverage tax levied pursuant to 7 V.S.A. chapter 15;


(2) [Repealed.]


(3) [Repealed.]


(4) corporate income and franchise taxes levied pursuant to chapter 151
of this title;


(5) individual income taxes levied pursuant to chapter 151 of this title;


(6) all corporation taxes levied pursuant to chapter 211 of this title;


(7) 69 percent of the meals and rooms taxes levied pursuant to chapter
225 of this title;


(8) [Repealed.]


(9) [Repealed.]


(10) 16.5 percent of the revenue collected under subdivision 9602(a)(4)
of this title, 33 percent of the revenue from the property transfer taxes levied
pursuant to chapter 231 of this title all other subdivisions of 9602(a) of this
title, and the revenue from the gains taxes levied each year pursuant to chapter
236 of this title; and


(11) [Repealed.]


(12) all other revenues accruing to the State not otherwise required by
law to be deposited in any other designated fund or used for any other
designated purpose.


Sec. 31. 32 V.S.A. § 9610 is amended to read:


§ 9610. REMITTANCE OF RETURN AND TAX; INSPECTION OF
RETURNS


* * *


(c) Prior to distributions of property transfer tax revenues under 10 V.S.A.
§ 312, 24 V.S.A. § 4306(a), and subdivision 435(b)(10) of this title, two
percent of the revenues received from the property transfer tax shall be
deposited in a special fund in the Department of Taxes for Property Valuation
and Review administration costs.







- 308 -


(d)(1) Prior to any distribution of property transfer tax revenue under 10
V.S.A. § 312, 24 V.S.A. § 4306(a), subdivision 435(b)(10) of this title, and
subsection subsections (c) and (e) of this section, $2,500,000.00 of the revenue
received from the property transfer tax shall be transferred to the Vermont
Housing Finance Agency to pay the principal of and interest due on the bonds,
notes, and other obligations authorized to be issued by the Agency pursuant to
10 V.S.A. § 621(22), the proceeds of which the Vermont Housing and
Conservation Board shall use to create affordable housing pursuant to 10
V.S.A. § 314.


(2) As long as the bonds, notes, and other obligations incurred pursuant
to subdivision (1) of this subsection remain outstanding, the rate of tax
imposed pursuant to section 9602 of this title shall not be reduced below a rate
estimated, at the time of any reduction, to generate annual revenues of at least
$12,000,000.00.


(e) Prior to any distribution of property transfer tax revenue under 10
V.S.A. § 312, 24 V.S.A. § 4306(a), subdivision 435(b)(10) of this title, and
subsection (c) of this section, $2,000,000.00 of the revenue received from the
property transfer tax shall be transferred to the Act 250 Permit Fund
established under 10 V.S.A. § 6029. Prior to a transfer under this subsection,
the Commissioner shall adjust the amount transferred according to the percent
change in the Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for All Urban
Consumers (CPI-U) by determining the increase or decrease, to the nearest
one-tenth of a percent, for the month ending on June 30 in the calendar year
one year prior to the first day of the fiscal year for which the transfer will be
made compared to the CPI-U for the month ending on June 30 in the calendar
year two years prior to the first day of the fiscal year for which the transfer
will be made.


Sec. 32. 10 V.S.A. § 6029 is amended to read:


§ 6029. ACT 250 PERMIT FUND


There is hereby established a special fund to be known as the Act 250
Permit Fund for the purposes of implementing the provisions of this chapter.
Revenues to the fund The Fund shall be composed of the revenue deposited
pursuant to 32 V.S.A. § 9610(e), those fees collected in accordance with
section 6083a of this title, gifts, appropriations, and copying and distribution
fees. The Board shall be responsible for the Fund and shall account for
revenues and expenditures of the Board. At the Commissioner’s discretion,
the Commissioner of Finance and Management may anticipate amounts to be
collected and may issue warrants based thereon for the purposes of this
section. Disbursements from the Fund shall be made through the annual







- 309 -


appropriations process to the Board and to the Agency of Natural Resources to
support those programs within the Agency that directly or indirectly assist in
the review of Act 250 applications. This Fund shall be administered as
provided in 32 V.S.A. chapter 7, subchapter 5.


Sec. 33. 32 V.S.A. § 3800(q) is added to read:


(q) The statutory purpose of the exemption under 32 V.S.A. chapter 125,
subchapter 3 for new construction or rehabilitation is to lower the cost of new
construction or rehabilitation of residential properties in this State.


Sec. 34. 32 V.S.A. chapter 125, subchapter 3 is added to read:


Subchapter 3. New Construction or Rehabilitation Exemption


§ 3870. DEFINITIONS


As used in this subchapter:


(1) “Agency” means the Agency of Commerce and Community
Development as established under 3 V.S.A. § 2402.


(2) “Appraisal value” has the same meaning as in subdivision
3481(1)(A) of this title.


(3) “Exemption period” has the same meaning as in subsection 3871(d)
of this subchapter.


(4) “New construction” means the building of new dwellings.


(5) “Principal residence” means the dwelling occupied by a resident
individual as the individual’s domicile during the taxable year and for a
property owner, owned, or for a renter, rented under a rental agreement other
than a short-term rental as defined under 18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14).


(6)(A) “Qualifying improvement” means new construction or a physical
change to an existing dwelling or other structure beyond normal and ordinary
maintenance, painting, repairs, or replacements, provided the change:


(i) results in new or rehabilitated dwellings that are designed to be
occupied as principal residences and not as short-term rentals as defined under
18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14); and


(ii) occurred through new construction, rehabilitation, or both
during the 12 months immediately preceding or immediately following
submission of an exemption application under this subchapter.


(B) “Qualifying improvement” does not mean new construction or a
physical change to any portion of a mixed-use building as defined under
10 V.S.A. § 6001(28) that is not used as a principal residence.







- 310 -


(7)(A) “Qualifying property” means a structure that is:


(i) located within a designated downtown district, village center,
or neighborhood development area determined pursuant to 24 V.S.A. chapter
76A or a new market tax credit area determined pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 45D,
or both;


(ii) composed of one or more dwellings designed to be occupied
as principal residences, provided:


(I) none of the dwellings shall be occupied as short-term
rentals as defined under 18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14) before the exemption period
ends; and


(II) a structure with more than one dwelling shall only qualify
if it meets the definition of mixed-income housing under 10 V.S.A.
§ 6001(27);


(iii) undergoing, has undergone, or will undergo qualifying
improvements; and


(iv) in compliance with all relevant permitting requirements.


(B) “Qualifying property” may have a mixed use as defined under
10 V.S.A. § 6001(28).


(C) “Qualifying property” does not mean property located within a
tax increment financing district established under 24 V.S.A. chapter 53,
subchapter 5.


(8) “Rehabilitation” means extensive repair, reconstruction, or
renovation of an existing dwelling or other structure, with or without
demolition, new construction, or enlargement, provided the repair,
reconstruction, or renovation:


(A) is for the purpose of eliminating substandard structural, housing,
or unsanitary conditions or stopping significant deterioration of the existing
structure; and


(B) equals or exceeds a total cost of 15 percent of the grand list value
prior to repair, reconstruction, or renovation or $75,000.00, whichever is less.


(9) “Taxable value” means the value of qualifying property that is taxed
during the exemption period.







- 311 -


§ 3871. EXEMPTION


(a) Value increase exemption. An increase in the appraisal value of a
qualifying property due to qualifying improvements shall be exempted from
property taxation pursuant to this subchapter by fixing and maintaining the
taxable value of the qualifying property at the property’s grand list value in the
year immediately preceding any qualifying improvements. A decrease in
appraisal value of a qualifying property due to damage or destruction from fire
or act of nature may reduce the qualifying property’s taxable value below the
value fixed under this subsection.


(b) State education property tax exemption. The appraisal value of
qualifying improvements to qualifying property shall be exempt from the State
education property tax imposed under chapter 135 of this title as provided
under this subchapter. The appraisal value exempt under this subsection shall
not be exempt from municipal property taxation unless the qualifying property
is located in a municipality that has voted to approve an exemption under
subsection (c) of this section.


(c) Municipal property tax exemption. If the legislative body of a
municipality by a majority vote recommends, the voters of a municipality may,
at an annual or special meeting warned for that purpose, adopt by a majority
vote of those present and voting an exemption from municipal property tax for
the value of qualifying improvements to qualifying property exempt from
State property taxation under subsection (b) of this section. The municipal
exemption shall remain in effect until rescinded in the same manner the
exemption was adopted. Not later than 30 days after the adjournment of a
meeting at which a municipal exemption is adopted or rescinded under this
subsection, the town clerk shall report to the Director of Property Valuation
and Review and the Agency the date on which the exemption was adopted or
rescinded.


(d) Exemption period.


(1) An exemption under this subchapter shall start in the first property
tax year immediately following the year in which an application for exemption
under section 3872 of this title is approved and one of the following occurs:


(A) issuance of a certificate of occupancy by the municipal
governing body for the qualifying property; or


(B) the property owner’s declaration of ownership of the qualifying
property as a homestead pursuant to section 5410 of this title.







- 312 -


(2) An exemption under this subchapter shall remain in effect for two
years, provided the property continues to comply with the requirements of this
subchapter. When the exemption period ends, the property shall be taxed at its
most recently appraised grand list value.


(3) The municipal exemption period for a qualifying property shall start
and end at the same time as the State exemption period; provided that, if a
municipality first votes to approve a municipal exemption after the State
exemption period has already started for a qualifying property, the municipal
exemption shall only apply after the vote and notice requirements have been
met under subsection (c) of this section and shall only continue until the State
exemption period ends.


§ 3872. ADMINISTRATION AND CERTIFICATION


(a) To be eligible for exemption under this subchapter, a property owner
shall:


(1) submit an application to the Agency of Commerce and Community
Development in the form and manner determined by the Agency, including
certification by the property owner that the property and improvements qualify
for exemption at the time of application and annually thereafter until the
exemption period ends; and


(2) the certification shall include an attestation under the pains and
penalties of perjury that the property will be used in the manner provided
under this subchapter during the exemption period, including occupancy of
dwellings as principal residences and not as short-term rentals as defined under
18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14), and that the property owner will either provide
alternative housing for tenants at the same rent or that the property has been
unoccupied either by a tenant’s choice or for 60 days prior to the application.
A certification by the property owner granted under this subdivision shall:


(A) be coextensive with the exemption period;


(B) require notice to the Agency of the transfer or assignment of the
property prior to transfer, which shall include the transferee’s or assignee’s full
names, phone numbers, and e-mail and mailing addresses;


(C) require notice to any prospective transferees or assignees of the
property of the requirements of the exemption under this subchapter; and


(D) require a new certification to be signed by the transferees or
assignees of the property.







- 313 -


(b) The Agency shall establish and make available application forms and
procedures necessary to verify initial and ongoing eligibility for exemption
under this subchapter. Not later than 60 days after receipt of a completed
application, the Agency shall determine whether the property and any
proposed improvements qualify for exemption and shall issue a written
decision approving or denying the exemption. The Agency shall notify the
property owner, the municipality where the property is located, and the
Commissioner of Taxes of its decision.


(c) If the property owner fails to use the property according to the terms of
the certification, the Agency shall, after notifying the property owner,
determine whether to revoke the exemption. If the exemption is revoked, the
Agency shall notify the property owner, the municipality where the property is
located, and the Commissioner of Taxes. Upon notification of revocation, the
Commissioner shall assess to the property owner:


(1) all State and municipal property taxes as though no exemption had
been approved, including for any exemption period that had already begun;
and


(2) interest pursuant to section 3202 of this title on previously exempt
taxes.


(d) No new applications for exemption shall be approved pursuant to this
subchapter after December 31, 2027.


Sec. 35. 32 V.S.A. § 4152(a) is amended to read:


(a) When completed, the grand list of a town shall be in such form as the
Director prescribes and shall contain such information as the Director
prescribes, including:


* * *


(6) For those parcels that are exempt, the insurance replacement value
reported to the local assessing officials by the owner under section 3802a of
this title or what the full listed value of the property would be absent the
exemption and the statutory authority for granting such exemption and, for
properties exempt pursuant to a vote, the year in which the exemption became
effective and the year in which the exemption ends; provided that, for parcels
exempt under chapter 125, subchapter 3 of this title, the insurance replacement
value shall not be substituted for the full listed value of the property absent the
exemption and the grand list shall indicate whether the exemption applies to
the State property tax or both the State and municipal property taxes.


* * *







- 314 -


Sec. 36. REPEALS; NEW CONSTRUCTION OR REHABILITATION
EXEMPTION


The following are repealed on July 1, 2037:


(1) 32 V.S.A. § 3800(q) (statutory purpose); and


(2) 32 V.S.A. chapter 125, subchapter 3 (new construction or
rehabilitation exemption).


Sec. 37. 32 V.S.A. § 4152(a) is amended to read:


(a) When completed, the grand list of a town shall be in such form as the
Director prescribes and shall contain such information as the Director
prescribes, including:


* * *


(6) For those parcels that are exempt, the insurance replacement value
reported to the local assessing officials by the owner under section 3802a of
this title or what the full listed value of the property would be absent the
exemption and the statutory authority for granting such exemption and, for
properties exempt pursuant to a vote, the year in which the exemption became
effective and the year in which the exemption ends; provided that, for parcels
exempt under chapter 125, subchapter 3 of this title, the insurance replacement
value shall not be substituted for the full listed value of the property absent the
exemption and the grand list shall indicate whether the exemption applies to
the State property tax or both the State and municipal property taxes.


Sec. 38. 32 V.S.A. § 9603 is amended to read:


§ 9603. EXEMPTIONS


The following transfers are exempt from the tax imposed by this chapter:


* * *


(27)(A) Transfers of blighted dwellings that the transferee certifies will
be rehabilitated for occupancy as principal residences and not as short-term
rentals as defined under 18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14), provided the rehabilitation is
completed and occupied not later than three years after the date of the transfer.
If, three years after the date of transfer, the rehabilitation has not been
completed and occupied, then the tax imposed by this chapter shall become
due.


(B) As used in this subdivision (27):


(i) “Blighted” means substandard structural or housing conditions,
including unsanitary and unsafe dwellings and deterioration sufficient to
constitute a threat to human health, safety, and public welfare.







- 315 -


(ii) “Completed” means rehabilitation of a dwelling to be fit for
occupancy as a principal residence.


(iii) “Principal residence” means a dwelling occupied by a resident
individual as the individual’s domicile during the taxable year and for a
property owner, owned, or for a renter, rented under a rental agreement other
than a short-term rental as defined under 18 V.S.A. § 4301(a)(14).


(iv) “Rehabilitation” means extensive repair, reconstruction, or
renovation of an existing dwelling beyond normal and ordinary maintenance,
painting, repairs, or replacements, with or without demolition, new
construction, or enlargement.


Sec. 39. 32 V.S.A. § 5811(21)(C) is amended to read:


(C) decreased by the following exemptions and deductions:


* * *


(iv) an amount equal to the itemized deduction for medical
expenses taken at the federal level by the taxpayer, under 26 U.S.C. § 213:


(I) minus the amount of the Vermont standard deduction and
Vermont personal exemptions taken by the taxpayer under this subdivision (C);
and


(II) minus any amount deducted at the federal level that is
attributable to the payment of an entrance fee or recurring monthly payment
made to a continuing care retirement community regulated under 8 V.S.A.
chapter 151, which exceeds the deductibility limits for premiums paid during
the taxable year on qualified long-term care insurance contracts under 26
U.S.C. 213(d)(10)(A).


* * * Housing Programs * * *


Sec. 40. 10 V.S.A. § 699 is amended to read:


§ 699. VERMONT RENTAL HOUSING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM


(a) Creation of Program.


(1) The Department of Housing and Community Development shall
design and implement the Vermont Rental Housing Improvement Program,
through which the Department shall award funding to statewide or regional
nonprofit housing organizations, or both, to provide competitive grants and
forgivable loans to private landlords for the rehabilitation, including
weatherization and accessibility improvements, of eligible rental housing units.







- 316 -


(2) The Department shall develop statewide standards for the Program,
including factors that partner organizations shall use to evaluate applications
and award grants and forgivable loans.


(3) A landlord shall not offer a unit created through the Program as a
short-term rental, as defined in 18 V.S.A. § 4301, for the period a grant or loan
agreement is in effect.


(4) The Department may utilize a reasonable percentage of
appropriations made to the Department for the Program to administer the
Program.


(5) The Department may cooperate with and subgrant funds to State
agencies and political subdivisions and public and private organizations in
order to carry out the purposes of this subsection.


(b) Eligible rental housing units. The following units are eligible for a
grant or forgivable loan through the Program:


(1) Non-code compliant.


(A) The unit is an existing unit, whether or not occupied, that does
not comply with the requirements of applicable building, housing, or health
laws.


(B) If the unit is occupied, the grant or forgivable loan agreement
shall include terms:


* * *


(d) Program requirements applicable to grants and forgivable loans.


(1)(A) A grant or loan shall not exceed:


(i) $70,000.00 per unit, for any unit converted from commercial
to residential purposes; or


(ii) $50,000.00 per unit, for any other eligible rental housing unit.


(B) In determining the amount of a grant or loan, a housing
organization shall consider the number of bedrooms in the unit and whether
the unit is being rehabilitated or newly created.


* * *


(e) Program requirements applicable to grants and five-year forgivable
loans. For a grant or five-year forgivable loan awarded through the Program,
the following requirements apply for a minimum period of five years:


* * *







- 317 -


(4)(A) A landlord may convert a grant to a forgivable loan upon
approval of the Department and the housing organization that approved the
grant.


(B) A landlord who converts a grant to a forgivable loan shall receive
a 10-percent prorated credit for loan forgiveness for each year in which the
landlord participates in the grant program.


(f) Requirements applicable to 10-year forgivable loans. For a 10-year
forgivable loan awarded through the Program, the following requirements
apply for a minimum period of 10 years:


* * *


Sec. 41. VERMONT RENTAL HOUSING IMPROVEMENT
APPROPRIATION


The sum of $5,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development in fiscal year 2025 for
the Vermont Housing Improvement Program established in 10 V.S.A. § 699.


Sec. 42. HEALTHY HOMES INITIATIVE APPROPRIATION


The sum of $1,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Environmental Conservation in fiscal year 2025 for the Healthy
Homes Initiative.


Sec. 43. 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 36 is amended to read:


Sec. 36. MIDDLE-INCOME HOMEOWNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM


* * *


(d) The total amount of subsidies for a project shall not exceed 35 percent
of eligible development costs, as determined by the Agency, which the at the
time of approval of the project, unless the Agency later determines that the
project will not result in affordable owner-occupied housing for income-
eligible homebuyers without additional subsidy, in which case the Agency
may, at its discretion, reasonably exceed this limitation and only to the extent
required to achieve affordable owner-occupied housing. The Agency may
shall allocate subsidies consistent with the following:


(1) Developer subsidy. The Agency may provide a direct subsidy to the
developer, which shall not exceed the difference between the cost of
development and the market value of the home as completed.







- 318 -


(2) Affordability subsidy. Of any remaining amounts available for the
project after the developer subsidy, the Agency may provide a subsidy for the
benefit of the homebuyer to reduce the cost of purchasing the home, provided
that:


(A) the Agency includes conditions in the subsidy, agreement or uses
another legal mechanism, to ensure that, to the extent the home value has risen,
the amount of the subsidy upon sale of the home, to the extent proceeds are
available, the amount of the affordability subsidy either:


(i) remains with the home to offset the cost to future homebuyers;
or


(ii) is recaptured by the Agency upon sale of the home for use in a
similar program to support affordable homeownership development; or


(B) the subsidy is subject to a housing subsidy covenant, as defined
in 27 V.S.A. § 610, that preserves the affordability of the home for a period of
99 years or longer.


(3) The Agency shall allocate not less than 33 percent of the funds
available through the Program to projects that include a housing subsidy
covenant consistent with subdivision (2)(B) of this subsection.


* * *


(f)(1) When implementing the Program, the Agency shall consult
stakeholders and experts in the field.


(2) The Program shall include:


(A) a streamlined and appropriately scaled application process;


(B) an outreach and education plan, including specific tactics to
reach and support eligible applicants, especially those from underserved
regions or sectors;


(C) an equitable system for distributing investments statewide on the
basis of need according to a system of priorities that includes consideration of:


(i) geographic distribution;


(ii) community size;


(iii) community economic need; and


(iv) whether an application has already received an investment or
is from an applicant in a community that has already received Program
funding.


(3) The Agency shall use its best efforts to ensure:







- 319 -


(A) that investments awarded are targeted to the geographic
communities or regions with the most pressing economic and employment
needs; and


(B) that the allocation of investments provides equitable access to the
benefits to all eligible geographical areas.


* * *


Sec. 44. REPEAL


2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 37 (middle-income homeownership;
implementation) is repealed.


Sec. 45. APPROPRIATION; MIDDLE-INCOME HOMEOWNERSHIP
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM


The sum of $10,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development to grant to the Vermont
Housing Finance Agency in fiscal year 2025 for the Middle-Income
Homeownership Development Program established by 2022 Acts and Resolves
No. 182, Sec. 11, and amended from time to time.


Sec. 46. APPROPRIATION; VERMONT HOUSING CONSERVATION
BOARD; PERPETUALLY AFFORDABLE HOUSING


The sum of $40,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Vermont Housing Conservation Board in fiscal year 2025 for the following
purposes:


(1) to provide support and enhance capacity for the production and
preservation of affordable rental housing and homeownership units, including
support for manufactured home communities, permanent homes for those
experiencing homelessness, recovery residences, and housing available to farm
workers and refugees; and


(2) to fund the construction and preservation of emergency shelter for
households experiencing homelessness.


Sec. 47. APPROPRIATION; RENTAL HOUSING STABILIZATION
SERVICES


The sum of $400,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Office of Economic Opportunity within the Department for Children and
Families in fiscal year 2025 for a grant to the Champlain Valley Office of
Economic Opportunity for the Rental Housing Stabilization Services Program
established by 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 43.







- 320 -


Sec. 48. APPROPRIATION; TENANT REPRESENTATION PILOT
PROGRAM


The sum of $1,025,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Agency of Human Services in fiscal year 2025 for a grant to Vermont Legal
Aid for the Tenant Representation Pilot Program established by 2023 Acts and
Resolves No. 47, Sec. 44.


Sec. 49. APPROPRIATION; RENT ARREARS ASSISTANCE FUND


The sum of $2,500,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Vermont State Housing Authority in fiscal year 2025 for the Rent Arrears
Assistance Fund established by 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 47, Sec. 45.


Sec. 50. APPROPRIATION; LANDLORD RELIEF PROGRAM


The sum of $1,100,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Vermont State Housing Authority in fiscal year 2025 for the Landlord Relief
Program to assist landlords eligible to access relief due to participation in the
Section 8 project-based voucher program.


Sec. 51. APPROPRIATION; FIRST GENERATION HOMEBUYER
PROGRAM


The sum of $1,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development in fiscal year 2025 for a
grant to the Vermont Housing Finance Agency for the First-Generation
Homebuyer Program established by 2022 Acts and Resolves No. 182, Sec. 2,
and amended from time to time.


* * * Rental Data Collection and Protection * * *


Sec. 52. 32 V.S.A. § 6069 is amended to read:


§ 6069. LANDLORD CERTIFICATE


(a) On or before January 31 of each year, the owner of land rented as a
portion of a homestead in the prior calendar year shall furnish a certificate of
rent to the Department of Taxes and to each claimant who owned a portion of
the homestead and rented that land as a portion of a homestead in the prior
calendar year. The certificate shall indicate the proportion of total property tax
on that parcel that was assessed for municipal property tax and for statewide
property tax.


(b) The owner of each rental property shall, on or before January 31 of
each year, furnish a certificate of rent to the Department of Taxes.


(c) A certificate under this section shall be in a form prescribed by the
Commissioner and shall include the following:







- 321 -


(1) the name of the renter,;


(2) the address and any property tax parcel identification number of the
homestead, the information required under subsection (f) of this section,;


(3) the name of the owner or landlord of the rental unit;


(4) the phone number, e-mail address, and mailing address of the
landlord, as available;


(5) the location of the rental unit;


(6) the type of rental unit;


(7) the number of rental units in the building;


(8) the gross monthly rent per unit;


(9) the year in which the rental unit was built;


(10) the ADA accessibility of the rental unit; and


(11) any additional information that the Commissioner determines is
appropriate.


(d) An owner who knowingly fails to furnish a certificate to the
Department as required by this section shall be liable to the Commissioner for
a penalty of $200.00 for each failure to act. Penalties under this subsection
shall be assessed and collected in the manner provided in chapter 151 of this
title for the assessment and collection of the income tax.


(e) [Repealed.]


(f) Annually on or before October 31, the Department shall prepare and
make available to a member of the public upon request a database in the form
of a sortable spreadsheet that contains the following information for each
rental unit for which the Department received a certificate pursuant to this
section:


(1) name of owner or landlord;


(2) mailing address of landlord;


(3) location of rental unit;


(4) type of rental unit;


(5) number of units in building; and







- 322 -


(6) School Property Account Number. Annually on or before December
15, the Department shall submit a report on the aggregated data collected
under this section to the Senate Committee on Economic Development,
Housing and General Affairs and the House Committee on General and
Housing.


Sec. 53. 32 V.S.A. § 3102 is amended to read:


§ 3102. CONFIDENTIALITY OF TAX RECORDS


(a) No present or former officer, employee, or agent of the Department of
Taxes shall disclose any return or return information to any person who is not
an officer, employee, or agent of the Department of Taxes except in
accordance with the provisions of this section. A person who violates this
section shall be fined not more than $1,000.00 or imprisoned for not more than
one year, or both; and if the offender is an officer or employee of this State,
the offender shall, in addition, be dismissed from office and be incapable of
holding any public office for a period of five years thereafter.


(b) The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this chapter:


* * *


(3) “Return information” includes a person’s name, address, date of
birth, Social Security or federal identification number or any other identifying
number; information as to whether or not a return was filed or required to be
filed; the nature, source, or amount of a person’s income, payments, receipts,
deductions, exemptions, credits, assets, liabilities, net worth, tax liabilities, tax
payments, deficiencies, or over-assessments; and any other data, from any
source, furnished to or prepared or collected by the Department of Taxes with
respect to any person.


* * *


(d) The Commissioner shall disclose a return or return information:


* * *


(7) to the Joint Fiscal Office pursuant to subsection 10503(e) of this title
and subject to the conditions and limitations specified in that subsection; and


(8) to the Attorney General; the Data Clearinghouse established in the
October 2017 Non-Participating Manufacturer Adjustment Settlement
Agreement, which the State of Vermont joined in 2018; the National
Association of Attorneys General; and counsel for the parties to the Agreement
as required by the Agreement and to the extent necessary to comply with the
Agreement and only as long as the State is a party to the Agreement; and







- 323 -


(9) annually on or before March 31, provided the disclosure relates to
the information collected on the landlord certificate pursuant to subsection
6069(c) of this title, to:


(A) the Division of Vermont Emergency Management at the
Department of Public Safety for the purpose of emergency management and
communication; and


(B) the Department of Housing and Community Development and
any organization then under contract with the Department of Housing and
Community Development to carry out a statewide housing needs assessment
for the purpose of the statewide housing needs assessment.


* * * Short-Term Rentals * * *


Sec. 54. 20 V.S.A. § 2676 is amended to read:


§ 2676. DEFINITION


As used in this chapter,:


(1) “rental Rental housing” means:


(1)(A) a “premises” as defined in 9 V.S.A. § 4451 that is subject to 9
V.S.A. chapter 137 (residential rental agreements); and


(2)(B) a “short-term rental” as defined in 18 V.S.A. § 4301 and
subject to 18 V.S.A. chapter 85, subchapter 7.


(2) “Short-term rental” has the same meaning as in 18 V.S.A. § 4301.


Sec. 55. 20 V.S.A. § 2678 is added to read:


§ 2678. SHORT-TERM RENTALS; HEALTH AND SAFETY
DISCLOSURE


(a) The Department of Public Safety’s Division of Fire Safety shall prepare
concise guidance on the rules governing health, safety, sanitation, and fitness
for habitation of short-term rentals in this State and provide the guidance to
any online platform or travel agent hosting or facilitating the offering of a
short-term rental in this State.


(b) Any online platform or travel agent hosting or facilitating the offering
of a short-term rental in this State shall make available the guidance under
subsection (a) of this section to a short-term rental operator in this State.


(c) A short-term rental operator shall:


(1) physically post the guidance under subsection (a) of this section in a
conspicuous place in any short-term rental offered for rent in this State; and







- 324 -


(2) provide the guidance under subsection (a) of this section as part of
any offering or listing of a short-term rental in this State.


* * * Flood Risk Disclosure * * *


Sec. 56. 27 V.S.A. § 380 is added to read:


§ 380. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION; CONVEYANCE OF REAL
ESTATE


(a) Prior to or as part of a contract for the conveyance of real property, the
seller shall provide notice to the buyer whether the property is subject to any
requirement under federal law to obtain and maintain flood insurance on the
property. This notice shall be provided in a clear and conspicuous manner in a
separate written document and attached as an addendum to the contract.


(b) The failure of the seller to provide the buyer with the information
required under subsection (a) of this section is grounds for the buyer to
terminate the contract prior to transfer of title or occupancy, whichever occurs
earlier.


(c) A buyer of real estate who fails to receive the information required to
be disclosed by a seller under subsection (a) of this section may bring an action
to recover from the seller the amount of the buyer’s damages and reasonable
attorney’s fees. The buyer may also seek punitive damages when the seller
knowingly failed to provide the required information.


(d) A seller shall not be liable for damages under this section for any error,
inaccuracy, or omission of any information required to be disclosed to the
buyer under subsection (a) of this section when the error, inaccuracy, or
omission was based on information provided by a public body or a by another
person with a professional license or special knowledge who provided a
written report that the seller reasonably believed to be correct and that was
provided by the seller to the buyer.


(e) Noncompliance with the requirements of this section shall not affect the
marketability of title of a real property.


Sec. 57. 9 V.S.A. § 4466 is added to read:


§ 4466. REQUIRED DISCLOSURE


A landlord shall disclose in advance of entering a rental agreement with a
tenant whether any portion of the premises offered for rent is located in a
Federal Emergency Management Agency mapped flood hazard area. This
notice shall be provided in a separate written document given to the tenant at
or before execution of the lease.







- 325 -


Sec. 58. 10 V.S.A. § 6236(e) is amended to read:


(e) All mobile home lot leases shall contain the following:


* * *


(8) Notice that the mobile home park is in a flood hazard area if any lot
within the mobile home park is wholly or partially located in a flood hazard
area according to the flood insurance rate map effective for the mobile home
park at the time the proposed lease is furnished to a prospective leaseholder.
This notice shall be provided in a clear and conspicuous manner in a separate
written document attached as an addendum to the proposed lease.


Sec. 59. 10 V.S.A. § 6201 is amended to read:


§ 6201. DEFINITIONS


As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise:


* * *


(13) “Flood hazard area” has the same meaning as in section 752 of this
title.


(14) “Flood insurance rate map” means, for any mobile home park, the
official flood insurance rate map describing that park published by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency on its website.


* * * Mobile Homes * * *


Sec. 60. 2022 Acts and Resolves No. 182, Sec. 3, as amended by 2023 Acts
and Resolves No. 3, Sec. 75 and 2023 Acts and Resolves No. 78, Sec. C.119,
is further amended to read:


Sec. 3. MANUFACTURED HOME IMPROVEMENT AND
REPLACEMENT PROGRAM


(a) Of the amounts available from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
recovery funds, $4,000,000 is appropriated to the Department of Housing and
Community Development for the purposes specified:


* * *


(b) The Department administers the Manufactured Home Improvement and
Repair Program and may utilize a reasonable percentage of appropriations
made to the Department for the Program to administer the Program. The
Department may cooperate with and subgrant funds to State agencies and
political subdivisions and public and private organizations in order to carry out
the purposes of subsection (a) of this section.







- 326 -


Sec. 61. MANUFACTURED HOME IMPROVEMENT AND REPAIR
PROGRAM APPROPRIATIONS; INFRASTRUCTURE; MOBILE
HOME REPAIR


The sum of $2,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development in fiscal year 2025 for
the following purposes:


(1) to improve mobile home park infrastructure under the Manufactured
Home Improvement and Repair Program established by 2022 Acts and
Resolves No. 182, Sec. 3, and amended from time to time; and


(2) to expand the Home Repair Awards program under the
Manufactured Home Improvement and Repair Program established by 2022
Acts and Resolves No. 182, Sec. 3, and amended from time to time.


Sec. 62. MOBILE HOME TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE APPROPRIATION


(a) The sum of $700,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development for a subgrant to the
Champlain Valley Office of Economic Opportunity in fiscal year 2025 to fund
the Mobile Home Park Technical Assistance Services Team, including
administration and direct project administration costs, such as advertising,
background check fees, office supplies, postage, staff mileage liability
insurance, training, service contracts, rent, utilities, telephone, space
maintenance, and staffing.


(b) The sum of $300,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund to the
Department of Housing and Community Development for a subgrant to the
Champlain Valley Office of Economic Opportunity in fiscal year 2025 to fund
individual resident emergency grants accessible to all income-eligible mobile
homeowners statewide to prevent loss of housing, remediate unsafe housing,
enhance housing safety, health, and habitability issues, and provide relief from
the impacts of natural disaster.


* * * Age-Restricted Housing * * *


Sec. 63. 10 V.S.A. § 325c is added to read:


§ 325c. AGE-RESTRICTED HOUSING; RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL


(a) Definitions. As used in this section:


(1) “Age-restricted property” means a privately owned age-restricted
residential property that is not licensed pursuant to 33 V.S.A. chapter 71 or 8
V.S.A. chapter 151.


(2) “Eligible buyer” means a non-profit housing provider.







- 327 -


(b)(1) Right of first refusal; assignment to eligible buyer. The Vermont
Housing and Conservation Board shall have a right of first refusal for age-
restricted properties as set out in this section. The Board may assign this right
to an eligible buyer.


(2) For any offer made under this section, the Board or its assignee shall
contractually commit to maintaining any affordability requirements in place
for the age-restricted property at the time of sale.


(c) Content of notice. An owner of age-restricted property shall give to the
Board notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the owner’s
intention to sell the age-restricted property. The requirements of this section
shall not be construed to restrict the price at which the owner offers the age-
restricted housing for sale. The notice shall state all the following:


(1) that the owner intends to sell the age-restricted property;


(2) the price, terms, and conditions under which the owner offers the
age-restricted property for sale;


(3) that for 60 days following the notice, the owner shall not make a
final unconditional acceptance of an offer to purchase the age-restricted
property and that if within the 60 days the owner receives notice pursuant to
subsection (d) of this section that the Board or its assignee intends to consider
purchase of the age-restricted property, the owner shall not make a final
unconditional acceptance of an offer to purchase the age-restricted property for
an additional 120 days, starting from the 61st day following notice, except one
from the Board or its assignee.


(d) Intent to negotiate; timetable. The Board or its assignee shall have 60
days following notice under subsection (c) of this section in which to
determine whether the buyer intends to consider purchase of the age-restricted
property. During this 60-day period, the owner shall not accept a final
unconditional offer to purchase the age-restricted property.


(e) Response to notice; required action. If the owner receives no notice
from the Board or its assignee during the 60-day period or if the Board notifies
the owner that neither it nor its designee intends to consider purchase of the
age-restricted property, the owner has no further restrictions regarding sale of
the age-restricted property pursuant to this section. If, during the 60-day
period, the owner receives notice in writing that the Board or its assignee
intends to consider purchase of the age-restricted property, then the owner
shall do all the following:







- 328 -


(1) not accept a final unconditional offer to purchase from a party other
than the Board or its assignee giving notice under subsection (d) of this section
for 120 days following the 60-day period, a total of 180 days following the
notice under subsection (c);


(2) negotiate in good faith with the Board or its assignee giving notice
under subsection (d) of this section; and


(3) consider any offer to purchase from the Board or its assignee giving
notice under subsection (d) of this section.


(f) Exceptions. The provisions of this section do not apply when the sale,
transfer, or conveyance of the age-restricted property is any one or more of the
following:


(1) through a foreclosure sale;


(2) to a member of the owner’s family or to a trust for the sole benefit
of members of the owner’s family;


(3) among the partners who own the age-restricted property;


(4) incidental to financing the age-restricted property;


(5) between joint tenants or tenants in common;


(6) pursuant to eminent domain; or


(7) pursuant to a municipal tax sale.


(g) Requirement for new notice of intent to sell.


(1) Subject to subdivision (2) of this subsection, a notice of intent to sell
issued pursuant to subsection (b) of this section shall be valid:


(A) for a period of one year from the expiration of the 60-day period
following the date of the notice; or


(B) if the owner has entered into a binding purchase and sale
agreement with the Board or its assignee within one year from the expiration
of the 60-day period following the date of the notice, until the completion of
the sale of the age-restricted property under the agreement or the expiration of
the agreement, whichever is sooner.


(2) During the period in which a notice of intent to sell is valid, an
owner shall provide a new notice of intent to sell, consistent with the
requirements of subsection (b) of this section, prior to making an offer to sell
the age-restricted property or accepting an offer to purchase the age-restricted
property that is either more than five percent below the price for which the
age-restricted property was initially offered for sale or less than five percent
above the final written offer from the Board or its assignee.







- 329 -


(h) “Good faith.” The Board or its assignee shall negotiate in good faith
with the owner for purchase of the age-restricted property.


Sec. 64. 9 V.S.A. § 4468a is added to read:


§ 4468a. AGE-RESTRICTED HOUSING; RENT INCREASE; NOTICE


(a) Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, an owner of
privately owned age-restricted residential property within the State that is not
licensed pursuant to 33 V.S.A. chapter 71 or 8 V.S.A. chapter 151 shall
provide written notification on a form provided by the Department of Housing
and Community Development to the Department and all the affected residents
of any rent increase at the property not later than 60 days before the effective
date of the proposed increase. The notice shall include all the following:


(1) the amount of the proposed rent increase;


(2) the effective date of the increase;


(3) a copy of the resident’s rights pursuant to this section; and


(4) the percentage of increase from the current base rent.


(b) If the owner fails to notify either the residents or the Department of a
rent increase as required by subsection (a) of this section, the proposed rent
increase shall be ineffective and unenforceable.


(c) This section shall not apply to any rent increase at any publicly
subsidized affordable housing that is monitored by a State or federal agency
for rent limitations.


* * * Reports and Studies * * *


Sec. 65. LAND BANK REPORT


(a) The Department of Housing and Community Development and the
Vermont League of Cities and Towns shall analyze the feasibility of a land
bank program that would identify, acquire, and restore to productive use
vacant, abandoned, contaminated, and distressed properties. The Department
and the League shall engage with local municipalities, regional organizations,
community organizations, and other stakeholders to explore:


(1) existing authority for public interest land acquisition for
redevelopment and use;


(2) successful models and best practices for land bank programs in
Vermont and other jurisdictions, including local, regional, nonprofit, state, and
hybrid approaches that leverage the capacities of diverse communities and
organizations within Vermont;







- 330 -


(3) potential benefits and challenges to creating and implementing a
land bank program in Vermont;


(4) alternative approaches to State and municipal land acquisition,
including residual value life estates and eminent domain, for purposes of
revitalization and emergency land management, including for placement of
trailers and other temporary housing;


(5) funding mechanisms and resources required to establish and operate
a land bank program; and


(6) the legal and regulatory framework required to govern a State land
bank program.


(b) On or before December 15, 2024, the Department of Housing and
Community Development and the Vermont League of Cities and Towns shall
submit a report to the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing
and General Affairs and the House Committee on General and Housing with
its findings and recommendations, including proposed draft legislation for the
establishment and operation of a land bank.


Sec. 66. RENT PAYMENT REPORTING REPORT


(a) To facilitate the development of a pilot program for housing providers
to report tenant rent payments for inclusion in consumer credit reports, the
Office of the State Treasurer shall study:


(1) any entities currently facilitating landlord credit reporting;


(2) the number of landlords in Vermont utilizing rent payment software,
related software expenses, and the need for or benefit of utilizing software for
positive pay reporting;


(3) the impacts on tenants from rent payment reporting programs,
including, if feasible, data gathered from the Champlain Housing Trust’s
program;


(4) any logistical steps the State must take to facilitate the program and
any associated administrative costs; and


(5) any other issues the Treasurer deems appropriate for facilitating the
development of the pilot program.


(b) On or before December 15, 2024, the Treasurer shall submit a report to
the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General
Affairs with its findings and recommendations, which may be in the form of
proposed legislation.







- 331 -


Sec. 67. LANDLORD-TENANT LAW; STUDY COMMITTEE; REPORT


(a) Creation. There is created the Landlord-Tenant Law Study Committee
to review and consider modernizing the landlord-tenant laws and evictions
processes in Vermont.


(b) Membership. The Committee is composed of the following members:


(1) three current members of the House of Representatives, not all from
the same political party, who shall be appointed by the Speaker of the House;


(2) three current members of the Senate, not all from the same political
party, who shall be appointed by the Committee on Committees;


(3) a representative of Vermont Legal Aid with experience defending
tenants in evictions actions;


(4) a representative of the Vermont Landlords Association;


(5) a representative of the Department of Housing and Community
Development; and


(6) a representative of the Judiciary.


(c) Powers and duties. The Committee shall study issues with Vermont’s
landlord-tenant laws and current evictions process, including the following
issues:


(1) whether Vermont’s landlord-tenant laws require modernization;


(2) the impact of evictions policies on rental housing availability;


(3) whether current termination notice periods and evictions processing
timelines reflect the appropriate balance between landlord and tenant interests;


(4) practical obstacles to the removal of unlawful occupants; and


(5) whether existing bases for termination are properly utilized,
including specifically 9 V.S.A. § 4467(b)(2) (termination for criminal activity,
illegal drug activity, or acts of violence).


(d) Assistance. For purposes of scheduling meetings and preparing
recommended legislation, the Committee shall have the assistance of the
Office of Legislative Operations and the Office of Legislative Counsel.


(e) Report. On or before December 15, 2024, the Committee shall report
to the Senate Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General
Affairs with its findings and any recommendations for legislative action,
which may be in the form of proposed legislation.







- 332 -


(f) Meetings.


(1) The ranking member of the Senate shall call the first meeting of the
Committee to occur on or before August 31, 2024.


(2) The Committee shall select a chair from among its members at the
first meeting.


(3) A majority of the membership shall constitute a quorum.


(4) The Committee shall cease to exist upon submission of its findings
and any recommendations for legislative action.


(g) Compensation and reimbursement.


(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General
Assembly, a legislative member of the Committee serving in the member’s
capacity as a legislator shall be entitled to per diem compensation and
reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 23 for not more than
6 meetings.


(2) Other members of the Committee shall be entitled to per diem
compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A.
§ 1010 for not more than 6 meetings


(3) Payments to members of the Committee authorized under this
subsection shall be made from monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


* * * Effective Dates * * *


Sec. 68. EFFECTIVE DATES


(a) This section shall take effect on passage.


(b) Sec. 26 (10 V.S.A. § 6081) shall take effect on October 1, 2025.


(c) Notwithstanding 1 V.S.A. § 214, Sec. 39 (medical expenses deduction)
shall take effect retroactively on January 1, 2024 and shall apply to taxable
years beginning on and after January 1, 2024.


(d) Sec. 35 (grand list contents, 32 V.S.A. § 4152(a)) shall take effect on
July 1, 2037.


(e) All other sections shall take effect on July 1, 2024.


(Committee vote: 5-0-0)












- 373 -


S. 213.


An act relating to the regulation of wetlands, river corridor development,
and dam safety.


Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator
Bray for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy.


The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all
after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:


* * * Short Title * * *


Sec. 1. SHORT TITLE


This act may be cited as the “Flood Safety Act.”


* * * Development in River Corridors * * *


Sec. 2. FINDINGS


The General Assembly finds that for purposes of Secs. 3–11 of this act:


(1) According to the 2023 National Climate Assessment, the
northeastern region of the United States has experienced a 60 percent increase
in more extreme precipitation events since 1958, particularly in inland
flooding of valleys, where persons, infrastructure, and agriculture tend to be
concentrated.


(2) The 2021 Vermont Climate Assessment highlights that Vermont has
seen:


(A) a 21 percent increase in average annual precipitation since 1990;
and


(B) 2.4 additional days of heavy precipitation since the 1960s.


(3) According to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration’s National Centers for Environmental Information, average
annual damages from flooding and flood-related disasters between 1980 and
2023 exceeds 30 million, conservatively.


(4) According to the Department of Environmental Conservation, 70 to
80 percent of all flood-related damages occur within Vermont’s river corridors.


(5) According to the Department of Environmental Conservation, only
10 percent of Vermont municipalities, cities, or incorporated villages have
adopted full river corridor protections through the Department’s model
bylaws.



aweinhagen

Text Box

from 2/23/24 Senate notice calendaras passed out of the Senate Nat Res Committee







- 374 -


(6) Promoting existing compact settlements, located along Vermont
waterways, will require improved flood resilience efforts, as described in the
initial Vermont Climate Action Plan of 2021, such as managing flood and
fluvial erosion hazards to protect Vermont’s compact settlements, which will
be a critical component of a successful climate adaptation response.


(7) The State, as recommended in the initial Vermont Climate Action
Plan of 2021, should adopt legislation that would authorize the Agency of
Natural Resources to revise the Vermont Flood Hazard Area and River
Corridor rule to provide the Agency with delegable, statewide jurisdiction and
permitting authority for new development taking place in mapped river
corridors.


Sec. 3. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION;
RIVER CORRIDOR BASE MAP; INFILL MAPPING;
EDUCATION AND OUTREACH


(a) On or before January 1, 2026, the Department of Environmental
Conservation shall amend by procedure the statewide River Corridor Base
Map to identify areas suitable for development that are located within existing
settlements and that will not cause or contribute to increases in fluvial erosion
hazards.


(b) Beginning on January 1, 2025 and ending on January 1, 2027, the
Department of Environmental Conservation shall conduct an education and
outreach program to consult with and collect input from municipalities,
environmental justice focus populations, the Environmental Justice Advisory
Council, businesses, property owners, farmers, and other members of the
public regarding how State permitting of development in mapped river
corridors will be implemented, including potential restrictions on the use of
land within mapped river corridors. The Department shall develop educational
materials for the public as part of its charge under this section. The
Department shall collect input from the public regarding the permitting of
development in mapped river corridors as proposed by this act. On or before
January 15, 2027 and until permitting of development in mapped river
corridors begins under 10 V.S.A. §754, the Department shall submit to the
Senate Committee on Natural Resources and Energy, the House Committee on
Environment and Energy, and the Environmental Justice Advisory Council a
report that shall include:


(1) a summary of the public input it received regarding State permitting
of development in mapped river corridors during the public education and
outreach required under this section;







- 375 -


(2) recommendations, based on the public input collected, for changes
to the requirements for State permitting of development in mapped river
corridors;


(3) an analysis and summary of State permitting of development in
mapped river corridors on environmental justice populations; and


(4) a summary of the Department’s progress in adopting the rules
required under 10 V.S.A. § 754 for the regulation of development in mapped
river corridors.


(c) In addition to other funds appropriated to the Agency of Natural
Resources in fiscal year 2025:


(1) the amount of $900,000.00 shall be appropriated from the General
Fund for six new, full-time positions to conduct infill and redevelopment
mapping of mapped river corridors under subsection (a) of this section, to
conduct the education and outreach required under subsection (b) of this
section, and to conduct the rulemaking and permitting required under Sec. 5 of
this act; and


(2) the amount of $225,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund
for the purpose of contracting costs necessary to implement the mapping,
education and outreach, rulemaking, and permitting required under this section
and Sec. 5 of this act.


Sec. 4. 10 V.S.A. § 752 is amended to read:


§ 752. DEFINITIONS


For the purpose of As used in this chapter:


* * *


(2) “Development,” for the purposes of flood hazard area management
and regulation, shall have has the same meaning as “development” under
44 C.F.R. § 59.1.


(3) “Flood hazard area” shall have has the same meaning as “area of
special flood hazard” under 44 C.F.R. § 59.1.


* * *


(8) “Uses Development exempt from municipal regulation” means land
use or activities that are development that is exempt from municipal land use
regulation under 24 V.S.A. chapter 117.


* * *







- 376 -


(13) “Existing settlement” has the same meaning as in section 6001 of
this title.


(14) “Mapped river corridor” means a river corridor drawn and adopted
by the Secretary of Natural Resources as part of the statewide River Corridor
Base Map Layer in accordance with the Flood Hazard Area and River Corridor
Protection Procedure for rivers and streams with a watershed area greater than
two square miles.


Sec. 5. 10 V.S.A. § 754 is amended to read:


§ 754. FLOOD HAZARD AREA RULES ; USES EXEMPT FROM
MUNICIPAL REGULATION MAPPED RIVER CORRIDOR
RULES


(a) Rulemaking authority.


(1) On or before November 1, 2014, the Secretary shall adopt rules
pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 that establish requirements for the issuance
and enforcement of permits applicable to:


(i) uses exempt from municipal regulation that are located within a
flood hazard area or river corridor of a municipality that has adopted a flood
hazard bylaw or ordinance under 24 V.S.A. chapter 117; and


(ii) State-owned and -operated institutions and facilities that are
located within a flood hazard area or river corridor On or before July 1, 2027,
the Secretary shall adopt rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 that establish
requirements for issuing and enforcing permits for:


(A) all development within a mapped river corridor in the State; and


(B) for development exempt from municipal regulation in flood
hazard areas.


* * *


(b) Required rulemaking content. The rules shall:


(1) set forth the requirements necessary to ensure uses that development
exempt from municipal regulation are in flood hazard areas is regulated by the
State in order to comply with the regulatory obligations set forth under the
National Flood Insurance Program.;


(2) be designed to ensure that the State and municipalities meet
community eligibility requirements for the National Flood Insurance Program;


(3) establish requirements for the permitting of development within the
mapped river corridors of the State;







- 377 -


(4) provide certain regulatory exemptions for minor development
activities in a mapped reiver corridor when the development activities have no
adverse environmental effects;


(5) establish the requirements and process for a municipality to be
delegated the State’s permitting authority for development in a mapped river
corridor when the development is not exempt from municipal regulation and
when the municipality has adopted an ordinance or bylaw under 24 V.S.A.
chapter 117 that has been approved by the Secretary and that meets or exceeds
the requirements established under State rule;


(6) set forth a process for amending the statewide River Corridor Base
Map; and


(c)(7) Discretionary rulemaking. The rules required under this section may
establish requirements that exceed the requirements of the National Flood
Insurance Program for uses development exempt from municipal regulation in
flood hazard areas, including requirements for the maintenance of existing
native riparian vegetation, provided that any rules adopted under this
subsection that exceed the minimum requirements of the National Flood
Insurance Program shall be designed to prevent or limit a risk of harm to life,
property, or infrastructure from flooding.


(d)(c) General permit. The rules authorized by this section may establish
requirements for a general permit to implement the requirements of this
section, including authorization under the general permit to conduct a specified
use exempt from municipal regulation without notifying or reporting to the
Secretary or an agency delegated under subsection (g)(f) of this section. A
general permit implementing the requirements of this section shall not be
required to be issued by rule.


(e)(d) Consultation with interested parties. Prior to submitting the rules
required by this section to the Secretary of State under 3 V.S.A. § 838, the
Secretary shall solicit the recommendations of and consult with affected and
interested persons and entities such as: the Secretary of Commerce and
Community Development; the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets; the
Secretary of Transportation; the Commissioner of Financial Regulation;
representatives of river protection interests; representatives of fishing and
recreational interests; representatives of the banking industry; representatives
of the agricultural community; representatives of the forest products industry;
the regional planning commissions; municipal interests; and representatives of
municipal associations.







- 378 -


(f)(e) Permit requirement. A Beginning on January 1, 2028, a person shall
not commence or conduct a use development exempt from municipal
regulation in a flood hazard area or commence or conduct any development in
a mapped river corridor in a municipality that has adopted a flood hazard area
bylaw or ordinance under 24 V.S.A. chapter 117 or commence construction of
a State-owned and -operated institution or facility located within a flood
hazard area or river corridor, without a permit issued under the rules required
under subsection (a) of this section by the Secretary or by a State agency
delegated permitting authority under subsection (g)(f) of this section. When
an application is filed under this section, the Secretary or delegated State
agency shall proceed in accordance with chapter 170 of this title.


(g)(f) Delegation.


(1) The Secretary may delegate to another State agency the authority to
implement the rules adopted under this section, to issue a permit under
subsection (f)(e) of this section, and to enforce the rules and a permit.


(2) A memorandum of understanding shall be entered into between the
Secretary and a delegated State agency for the purpose of specifying
implementation of requirements of this section and the rules adopted under this
section, issuance of a permit or coverage under a general permit under this
section, and enforcement of the rules and permit required by this section.


(3) Prior to entering a memorandum of understanding, the Secretary
shall post the proposed memorandum of understanding on its website for 30
days for notice and comment. When the memorandum of understanding is
posted, it shall include a summary of the proposed memorandum; the name,
telephone number, and address of a person able to answer questions and
receive comments on the proposal; and the deadline for receiving comments.
A final copy of a memorandum of understanding entered into under this
section shall be sent to the chairs of the House Committees on Energy and
Technology and on Natural Resources, Fish, and Wildlife Committee on
Environment and Energy, the Senate Committee on Natural Resources and
Energy, and any other committee that has jurisdiction over an agency that is a
party to the memorandum of understanding.


(h)(g) Municipal authority. This section and the rules adopted under it
shall not prevent a municipality from adopting substantive requirements for
development in a flood hazard area bylaw or ordinance under 24 V.S.A.
chapter 117 that are more stringent than the rules required by this section,
provided that the bylaw or ordinance shall not apply to uses exempt from
municipal regulation.







- 379 -


Sec. 6. 10 V.S.A. § 755 is amended to read:


§ 755. STATE FLOOD HAZARD AREA STANDARDS; MUNICIPAL
EDUCATION; MODEL FLOOD HAZARD AREA
BYLAW OR ORDINANCE


(a) State flood hazard area standards.


(1) On or before January 1, 2026, the Secretary shall adopt rules
pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 that establish a set of flood hazard area
standards for enrollment in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).


(2) The rules shall contain flood hazard area standards that meet or
exceed the minimum standards of the NFIP by reducing flood risk to new
development and ensuring new development does not create adverse impacts
to adjacent preexisting development.


(3) Any municipality with a municipal flood hazard area bylaw or
ordinance shall update their bylaw or ordinance to incorporate the State Flood
Hazard Area Standards. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a municipality
from adopting a more protective flood hazard standard with language and
standards approved by the Agency.


(4) On or after January 1, 2028, the State Flood Hazard Areas adopted
under subdivision (1) of this subsection shall be the State minimum flood
hazard areas standards.


(b) Education and assistance. The Secretary, in consultation with regional
planning commissions, shall provide ongoing education, technical assistance,
and guidance to municipalities regarding the requirements under 24 V.S.A.
chapter 117 necessary for compliance with the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP), including implementation of the State Flood Hazard Area
Standards adopted under subsection (a) of this section.


(b)(c) Model flood hazard area bylaw or ordinance. The Secretary shall
create and make available to municipalities a model flood hazard area bylaw or
ordinance for potential adoption by municipalities pursuant to 24 V.S.A.
chapter 117 or 24 V.S.A. § 2291. The model bylaw or ordinance shall set forth
the minimum provisions necessary to meet the requirements of the National
Flood Insurance Program NFIP, including implementation of the State Flood
Hazard Area Standards adopted under subsection (a) of this section. The
model bylaw may include alternatives that exceed the minimum requirements
for compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program NFIP and State
Flood Hazard Area Standards in order to allow a municipality to elect whether
it wants to adopt the minimum requirement or an alternate requirement that
further minimizes the risk of harm to life, property, and infrastructure from
flooding.







- 380 -


(c)(d) Assistance to municipalities with no flood hazard area bylaw or
ordinance. The Secretary, in consultation with municipalities, municipal
organizations, and regional planning commissions, shall provide education and
technical assistance to municipalities that lack a flood hazard area bylaw or
ordinance in order to encourage adoption of a flood hazard area bylaw or
ordinance that qualifies the municipality for the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP).


Sec. 7. 24 V.S.A. § 4302(c)(14) is amended to read:


(14) To encourage flood resilient communities.


(A) New development in identified flood hazard, fluvial erosion, and
river corridor protection areas should be avoided. If new development is to be
built in such areas, it should not exacerbate flooding and fluvial erosion and
should meet or exceed the statewide minimum flood hazard area standards
established by rule by the Agency of Natural Resources.


* * *


Sec. 8. 24 V.S.A. § 4382(a)(12) is amended to read:


(12)(A) A flood resilience plan that:


(i) identifies flood hazard and fluvial erosion hazard areas, based
on river corridor maps provided by the Secretary of Natural Resources
pursuant to 10 V.S.A. § 1428(a) or maps recommended by the Secretary, and
designates those areas to be protected, including floodplains, river corridors,
land adjacent to streams, wetlands, and upland forests, to reduce the risk of
flood damage to infrastructure and improved property; and


(ii) recommends policies and strategies to protect the areas
identified and designated under subdivision (12)(A)(i) of this subsection and to
mitigate risks to public safety, critical infrastructure, historic structures, and
municipal investments. These strategies shall include adoption and
implementation of the State Flood Hazard Area Standards.


(B) A flood resilience plan may reference an existing local hazard
mitigation plan approved under 44 C.F.R. § 201.6.


Sec. 9. 24 V.S.A. § 4424 is amended to read:


§ 4424. SHORELANDS; RIVER CORRIDOR PROTECTION AREAS;
FLOOD OR HAZARD AREA; SPECIAL OR FREESTANDING
BYLAWS


(a) Bylaws; flood and other hazard areas; river corridor protection. Any
municipality may adopt freestanding bylaws under this chapter to address







- 381 -


particular hazard areas in conformance with the municipal plan, the State
Flood Hazard Area Standards or, for the purpose of adoption of a flood hazard
area bylaw, a local hazard mitigation plan approved under 44 C.F.R. § 201.6.
Such freestanding bylaws may include the following, which may also be part
of zoning or unified development bylaws:


(1) Bylaws to regulate development and use along shorelands.


(2) Bylaws to regulate development and use in flood areas, river
corridor protection areas, flood hazard areas or other hazard areas. The
following shall apply if flood hazard or other hazard area bylaws are enacted:


(A) Purposes.


(i) To minimize and prevent the loss of life and property, the
disruption of commerce, the impairment of the tax base, and the extraordinary
public expenditures and demands on public service that result from flooding,
landslides, erosion hazards, earthquakes, and other natural or human-made
hazards.


(ii) To ensure that the design and construction of development in
flood, river corridor protection, hazard and other hazard areas are
accomplished in a manner that minimizes or eliminates the potential for flood
and loss or damage to life and property and ensures new development will not
adversely affect existing development in a flood hazard area or that minimizes
the potential for fluvial erosion and loss or damage to life and property in a
river corridor protection area.


(iii) To manage all flood hazard areas designated pursuant to
10 V.S.A. § 753.


(iv) To make the State and municipalities eligible for federal flood
insurance and other federal disaster recovery and hazard mitigation funds as
may be available.


(B) Contents of bylaws. Except as provided in subsection (c) of this
section, flood, river corridor protection area, hazard and other hazard area
bylaws may shall:


(i) Contain standards and criteria that prohibit the placement of
damaging obstructions or structures, the use and storage of hazardous or
radioactive materials, and practices that are known to further exacerbate
hazardous or unstable natural conditions Require compliance with the State
Flood Hazard Area Standards established by rule pursuant to 10 V.S.A.
§ 755(c) and meet all additional requirements under the National Flood
Insurance Program as set forth in 44 C.F.R. § 60.3.







- 382 -


(ii) Require flood, fluvial erosion, and hazard protection through
elevation, floodproofing, disaster preparedness, hazard mitigation, relocation,
or other techniques.


(iii) Require adequate provisions for flood drainage and other
emergency measures.


(iv) Require provision of adequate and disaster-resistant water and
wastewater facilities.


(v) Establish other restrictions to promote the sound management
and use of designated flood, river corridor protection, and other hazard areas.


(vi) Regulate Regulate all land development in a flood hazard
area, river corridor protection area, or other hazard area, except for
development that is regulated under 10 V.S.A. § 754.


(C) Effect on zoning bylaws. Flood hazard or other hazard area
bylaws may alter the uses otherwise permitted, prohibited, or conditional in a
flood hazard area or other hazard area under a bylaw, as well as the
applicability of other provisions of that bylaw. Where a flood hazard bylaw, a
hazard area bylaw, or both apply along with any other bylaw, compliance with
the flood or other hazard area bylaw shall be prerequisite to the granting of a
zoning permit. Where a flood hazard area bylaw or a hazard area bylaw but
not a zoning bylaw applies, the flood hazard and other hazard area bylaw shall
be administered in the same manner as are zoning bylaws, and a flood hazard
area or hazard area permit shall be required for land development covered
under the bylaw.


(D) Mandatory provisions.


(i) Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, all flood
hazard and other hazard area bylaws shall provide that no permit for new
construction or substantial improvement shall be granted for a flood hazard or
other hazard area until after both the following:


(I) A a copy of the application is mailed or delivered by the
administrative officer or by the appropriate municipal panel to the Agency of
Natural Resources or its designee, which may be done electronically, provided
the sender has proof of receipt.; and


(II) Either either 30 days have elapsed following the mailing or
the Agency or its designee delivers comments on the application.


(ii) The Agency of Natural Resources may delegate to a qualified
representative of a municipality with a flood hazard area bylaw or ordinance or
to a qualified representative for a regional planning commission the Agency’s







- 383 -


authority under this subdivision (a)(2)(D) to review and provide technical
comments on a proposed permit for new construction or substantial
improvement in a flood hazard area. Comments provided by a representative
delegated under this subdivision (a)(2)(D) shall not be binding on a
municipality.


(b) Ordinances. A municipality may adopt a flood hazard area, river
corridor protection area, or other hazard area regulation that meets the
requirements of this section by ordinance under subdivision 2291(25) of this
title.


* * *


Sec. 10. STUDY COMMITTEE ON STATE ADMINISTRATION OF THE
NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM


(a) Creation. There is created the Study Committee on State
Administration of the National Flood Insurance Program to review and
recommend how to reduce vulnerability to inundation flooding, including how
and to what scale to shift responsibility for the administration and enforcement
of the National Flood Insurance Program from individual municipalities to the
State Department of Environmental Conservation.


(b) Membership. The Study Committee on State Administration of the
National Flood Insurance Program shall be composed of the following
members:


(1) one current member of the House of Representatives, appointed by
the Speaker of the House;


(2) one current member of the Senate, appointed by the Committee on
Committees;


(3) two members of the Department of Environmental Conservation
Rivers Program, appointed by the Governor;


(4) two members of Vermont’s Regional Planning Commissions,
appointed by the Vermont Association of Planning and Development
Agencies; and


(5) one member to represent Vermont municipalities, appointed by the
Committee on Committees.


(c) Powers and duties. The Study Committee on State Administration of
the National Flood Insurance Program shall:


(1) summarize the existing responsibilities of individual municipalities
that are enrolled in the National Flood Insurance Program;







- 384 -


(2) assess the ability of individual municipalities enrolled in the
National Flood Insurance Program to comply with the program’s minimum
standards, identifying the specific barriers to enrollment and compliance;


(3) assess the feasibility of the Department of Environmental
Conservation Rivers Program to take on the administrative burden of the
National Flood Insurance Program, including an assessment of the various
scales with which this could occur;


(4) estimate the staffing needs to effectively administer the National
Flood Insurance Program for Vermont’s municipalities;


(5) recommend how to phase in a proposed state-administered National
Flood Insurance Program; and


(6) propose to the General Assembly funding sources to support all
potential administrative costs for a proposed state-administered National Flood
Insurance Program, including the permanent full-time classified staff positions
in the Department of Environmental Conservation’s Rivers Program needed to
establish a flood hazard area permitting program and a permitting fee for
applications to the Department of Environmental Conservation’s Rivers
Program and other potential funding sources.


(d) Assistance. For purposes of scheduling meetings and administrative
support, the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the Office of
Legislative Operations. For purposes of providing legal assistance and
drafting of legislation, the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the
Office of Legislative Counsel. For the purpose of providing fiscal assistance,
the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the Joint Fiscal Office.


(e) Report. On or before August 15, 2025, the Study Committee shall
submit a written report to the General Assembly with its findings and any
recommendations for legislative action. Any recommendation for legislative
action shall be as draft legislation.


(f) Meetings.


(1) The Office of Legislative Counsel shall call the first meeting of the
Study Committee.


(2) The Committee shall select a chair from among its members at the
first meeting.


(3) A majority of the membership of the Study Committee shall
constitute a quorum.


(4) The Study Committee shall cease to exist on December 31, 2025.







- 385 -


(g) Compensation and reimbursement.


(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General
Assembly, a legislative member of the Study Committee shall be entitled to
per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A. §
23 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


(2) Other members of the Study Committee shall be entitled to per diem
compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A.
§ 1010 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


Sec. 11. TRANSITION; IMPLEMENTATION; APPROPRIATIONS;
POSITIONS


(a) The Secretary of Natural Resources shall initiate rulemaking, including
pre-rulemaking, for the rules required in Sec. 5 of this act, 10 V.S.A. § 754
(river corridor development), not later than July 1, 2025. The rules shall be
adopted on or before July 1, 2027.


(b) Prior to the effective date of the rules required in Sec. 5 of this act,
10 V.S.A. § 754 (river corridor development), the Secretary of Natural
Resources shall continue to implement the Vermont Flood Hazard Area and
River Corridor Rule as that rule existed on July 1, 2024 for development
exempt from municipal regulation in flood hazard areas and relevant river
corridors.


(c) The Secretary of Natural Resources shall not require a permit under the
rules required by 10 V.S.A. § 754 for development in a flood hazard area or
mapped river corridor for development that has the same meaning as
“development” under 44 C.F.R. § 59.1 for activities for which:


(1) all necessary local, State, or federal permits have been obtained prior
to January 1, 2028 and the permit holder takes no subsequent act that would
require a permit or registration under 10 V.S.A. chapter 32; or


(2) a complete application for all applicable local, State, and federal
permits has been submitted on or before January 1, 2028, provided that the
applicant does not subsequently file an application for a permit amendment
that would require a permit under 10 V.S.A. chapter 32 and that substantial
construction of the impervious surface or cleared area commences within two
years following the date on which all applicable local, State, and federal
permits become final.


(d) In addition to other funds appropriated to the Agency of Natural
Resources in fiscal year 2025:







- 386 -


(1) the amount of $300,000.00 shall be appropriated from the General
Fund to fund two new positions to adopt the State Flood Hazard Area
Standards required under Sec. 6 of this act and to assist municipalities in the
adoption of the State Flood Hazard Area Standards; and


(2) the amount of $225,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund
for the purpose of contracting costs necessary to support adoption of the State
Flood Hazard Area Standards required under Sec. 6 of this act.


* * * Wetlands * * *


Sec. 12. 10 V.S.A. § 901 is amended to read:


§ 901. WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT POLICY


It is hereby declared to be the policy of the State that:


(1) the water resources of the State shall be protected,; regulated; and,
where necessary, controlled under authority of the State in the public interest
and to promote the general welfare;


(2) the wetlands of the State shall be protected, regulated, and restored
so that Vermont achieves a net gain of wetlands acreage; and


(3) regulation and management of the water resources of the State,
including wetlands, should be guided by science, and authorized activities in
water resources and wetlands should have a net environmental benefit to the
State.


Sec. 13. 10 V.S.A. § 902(13) is added to read:


(13) “Dam removal” has the same meaning as in section 1080 of this
title.


Sec. 14. 10 V.S.A. § 916 is amended to read:


§ 916. REVISION UPDATE OF VERMONT SIGNIFICANT WETLANDS
INVENTORY MAPS


The Secretary shall revise the Vermont significant wetlands inventory maps
to reflect wetland determinations issued under section 914 of this title and
rulemaking by the panel under section 915 of this title. (a) On or before
January 1, 2026, and not less than annually thereafter, the Agency of Natural
Resources shall update the Vermont Significant Wetlands Inventory (VSWI)
maps. The annual updates to the VSWI shall include integration of
georeferenced shapefiles or similar files for all verified delineations performed
within the State and submitted to the Agency of Natural Resources as part of a
permit application, as well as a wetlands determination issued under section
914 of this title and rulemaking conducted pursuant to section 915 of this title.







- 387 -


The VSWI layer shall include integration of any additional town specific
inventories of otherwise unmapped wetlands performed by consultants on the
Agency’s Wetland Consultant List if the consultant has presented the map to a
municipality or the Agency of Natural Resources.


(b) On or before January 1, 2030, the Secretary of Natural Resources shall
complete High Quality Wetlands Inventory (NWI) Plus level mapping for all
of the tactical basins in the State. The high-quality mapping shall include a
ground truthing component, as recommended by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service (USFWS). Once all tactical basins are mapped, the Agency shall
evaluate the need for NWI Plus level map updates on a five-year cycle,
simultaneously with updates to the corresponding tactical basin plan.


Sec. 15. 10 V.S.A. §§ 918 and 919 are added to read:


§ 918. NET GAIN OF WETLANDS; STATE GOAL; RULEMAKING


(a) On or before July 1, 2025, the Secretary of Natural Resources shall
amend the Vermont Wetlands Rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 to clarify
that the goal of wetlands regulation and management in the State is the net
gain of wetlands to be achieved through protection of existing wetlands and
restoration of wetlands that were previously adversely affected. This condition
shall not apply to wetland, river, and flood plain restoration projects, including
dam removals.


(b) The Vermont Wetlands Rules shall prioritize the protection of existing
intact wetlands from adverse effects. Where a permitted activity in a wetland
will cause more than 5,000 square feet of adverse effects that cannot be
avoided, the Secretary shall mandate that the permit applicant restore, enhance,
or create wetlands or buffers to compensate for the adverse effects on a
wetland. The amount of wetlands to be restored, enhanced, or created shall be
calculated, at a minimum, by determining the acreage or square footage of
wetlands permanently drained or filled as a result of the permitted activity and
multiplying that acreage or square footage by two, to result in ratio of 2:1
restoration to wetland loss. Establishment of a buffer zone contiguous to a
wetland shall not substitute for the restoration, enhancement, or creation of
wetlands. Adverse impacts to wetland buffers shall be compensated for based
on the effects of the impact on wetland function.


(c) At a minimum, the Wetlands Rules shall be revised to:


(1) Require an applicant for a wetland permit that authorizes adverse
impacts to more than 5,000 square feet of wetlands to compensate for those
impacts through restoration, enhancement, or creation of wetland resources.
Wetland, river, and floodplain restoration projects, including dam removal,
shall be an allowed use within a wetland under this rule.







- 388 -


(2) Incorporate the net gain rule into requirements for permits issued
after September 1, 2025.


(3) Establish a set of parameters and restoration ratios applicable to
permittee-designed restored wetland restoration projects, including a minimum
2:1 ratio of restoration to loss to compensate for permanently filled or drained
wetlands. These parameters shall include consideration of the following
factors:


(A) the existing level of wetland function at the site prior to
mitigation or restoration of wetlands;


(B) the amount of wetland acreage and wetland function lost as a
result of the project;


(C) how the wetland acreage and functions will be restored at the
proposed compensation site;


(D) the length of time before the compensation site will be fully
functional;


(E) the risk that the compensation project may not succeed;


(F) the differences in the location of the adversely affected wetland
and the wetland subject to compensation that affect the services and values
offered; and


(G) the requirement that permittees conduct five years of post-
restoration monitoring for the restored wetlands, at which time the Agency can
decide if further action is needed.


(d) When amending the Vermont Wetlands Rules under this section, the
Secretary shall establish a Vermont in-lieu fee (ILF) compensation program for
wetlands impacts that may be authorized as compensation for an adverse effect
on a wetland when the permittee cannot achieve restoration. The Secretary
may implement a Vermont ILF compensation program through agreements
with third-party entities such as the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers or
environmental organizations, provided that any ILF monetary compensation
authorized under the rules shall be expended on restoration, reestablishment,
enhancement, or conservation projects within the State at the HUC 8 level of
the adversely affected wetland when practicable.


§ 919. WETLANDS PROGRAM REPORTS


(a) On or before April 30, 2025, and annually thereafter, the Secretary of
Natural Resources shall submit to the House Committee on Environment and
Energy and to the Senate Committee on Natural Resources and Energy a report
on annual losses and gains of significant wetlands in the State. The report
shall include:







- 389 -


(1) the location and acreage of Class II wetland and buffer losses
permitted by the Agency in accordance with section 913 of this title, for which
construction of the permitted project has commenced;


(2) the acreage of Class II wetlands and buffers gained through permit-
related enhancement and restoration;


(3) the number of site visits and technical assistance calls conducted by
the Agency of Natural Resources, the number of permits processed by the
Agency, and any enforcement actions that were taken by the Agency or the
Office of the Attorney General in the previous year for violations of this
chapter; and


(4) an updated mitigation summary of the extent of wetlands restored
on-site compared with compensation performed off-site, in-lieu fees paid, or
conservation.


(b) On or before April 30, 2027, and every five years thereafter, the
Agency of Natural Resources shall submit to the House Committee on
Environment and Energy and to the Senate Committee on Natural Resources
and Energy a comprehensive report on the status of wetlands in the State. The
report shall include:


(1) an analysis of historical trends of wetlands, including data analyzing
the projects for which wetland permits were issued by county and tactical
basin;


(2) the results of each NWI Plus Mapping Project, including net acres
mapped, dominant vegetative composition, connected tributaries, locations of
confirmed ground truthing, if applicable, and any other hydrologic soil or
vegetative observations or trends noted; and


(3) relevant updates related to Class I and Class II wetlands to include
additional wetlands identified under these categories, their composition and
general characteristics, potential threats, patterns of use, and other unique
features.


Sec. 16. 10 V.S.A. § 1274(a) is amended to read:


(a) Notwithstanding any other provision or procedure set forth in this
chapter, if the Secretary finds that any person has discharged or is discharging
any waste or damaging the ecological functions of wetlands in violation of this
chapter or chapter 37 of this title, or that any person has failed to comply with
any provisions of any order or permit issued in accordance with this chapter or
chapter 37 of this title, the Secretary may bring suit in the Superior Court in
any county where the discharge, damage to wetlands, or noncompliance has
occurred to enjoin the discharge and to, obtain compliance, and mandate







- 390 -


restoration of damaged wetlands. The suit shall be brought by the Attorney
General in the name of the State. The court may issue a temporary injunction
or order in any such proceedings and may exercise all the plenary powers
available to it in addition to the power to:


(1) Enjoin future discharges.


(2) Order the design, construction, installation, or operation of pollution
abatement facilities or alternate waste disposal systems.


(3) Order the restoration of damaged wetlands. Wetlands damaged in
violation of chapter 37 of this title may be ordered restored, enhanced, or
created.


(4) Order the removal of all wastes discharged and the restoration of
water quality.


(4)(5) Fix and order compensation for any public property destroyed,
damaged, or injured or any aquatic or terrestrial biota harmed or destroyed.
Compensation for fish taken or destroyed shall be deposited into the Fish and
Wildlife Fund.


(5)(6) Assess and award punitive damages.


(6)(7) Levy civil penalties not to exceed $10,000.00 a day for each day
of violation.


(7)(8) Order reimbursement to any agency of federal, State, or local
government from any person whose discharge caused governmental
expenditures.


Sec. 17. APPROPRIATIONS


In addition to other funds appropriated to the Agency of Natural Resources
in fiscal year 2025, the amount of $300,000.00 shall be appropriated from the
General Fund to fund two new positions to implement and comply with the
requirements of Secs. 12–15 of this act.


* * * Dam Safety * * *


Sec. 18. 10 V.S.A. chapter 43 is amended to read:


CHAPTER 43. DAMS


§ 1079. PURPOSE


It is the purpose of this chapter to protect public safety and provide for the
public good through the inventory, inspection, and evaluation of dams in the
State.







- 391 -


§ 1080. DEFINITIONS


As used in this chapter:


(1) “Department” means the Department of Environmental
Conservation.


* * *


(4) “Engineer” means a professional engineer licensed under Title 26
who has experience in the design and investigation of dams.


* * *


(6)(A) “Dam” means any artificial barrier, including its appurtenant
works, that is capable of impounding water, other liquids, or accumulated
sediments.


(B) “Dam” includes an artificial barrier that meets all of the
following:


(i) previously was capable of impounding water, other liquids, or
accumulated sediments;


(ii) was partially breached; and


(iii) has not been properly removed or mitigated.


(C) “Dam” shall does not mean:


(i) barriers or structures created by beaver or any other wild
animal as that term is defined in section 4001 of this title;


(ii) transportation infrastructure that has no normal water storage
capacity and that impounds water only during storm events;


(iii) an artificial barrier at a stormwater management structure that
is regulated by the Agency of Natural Resources under chapter 47 of this title;


(iv) an underground or elevated tank to store water otherwise
regulated by the Agency of Natural Resources;


(v) an agricultural waste storage facility regulated by the Agency
of Agriculture, Food and Markets under 6 V.S.A. chapter 215; or


(vi) any other structure identified by the Department by rule.


(7) “Federal dam” means:


(A) a dam owned by the United States; or


(B) a dam subject to a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
license or exemption.







- 392 -


(8) “Intake structure” means a dam that is constructed and operated for
the primary purposes of minimally impounding water for the measurement and
withdrawal of streamflow to ensure use of the withdrawn water for
snowmaking, potable water, irrigation, or other purposes approved by the
Department.


(9) “Nonfederal dam” means a dam that is not a federal dam.


(10) “Dam removal” means all actions needed to eliminate the risk of
dam failure-related inundation below the dam and include partial or complete
structural removal to the extent that the dam is no longer capable of
impounding water, liquid, or sediment.


§ 1081. JURISDICTION OF DEPARTMENT AND PUBLIC UTILITY
COMMISSION


(a) Powers and duties. Unless otherwise provided, the powers and duties
authorized by this chapter shall be exercised by the Department, except that the
Public Utility Commission shall exercise those powers and duties over
nonfederal dams and projects that relate to or are incident to the generation of
electric energy for public use or as a part of a public utility system of
Environmental Conservation. Nonfederal dams at which the generation of
electric energy is subject to licensing jurisdiction under the Federal Power Act,
16 U.S.C. chapter 12, subchapter 1, and the dam structure is regulated
separately from electric generation shall not be under the jurisdiction of the
Public Utility Commission Department, except to the extent of regulation at
those facilities related solely to electric generation under the Federal Power
Act.


(b) Transfer of jurisdiction. Jurisdiction over a nonfederal dam is
transferred from the Department to the Public Utility Commission when the
Public Utility Commission receives an application for a certificate of public
good for electricity generation at that dam. Jurisdiction over a federal dam is
transferred to the Department when the license or exemption for a federal dam
expires or is otherwise lost; when a certificate of public good is revoked or
otherwise lost; or when the Public Utility Commission denies an application
for a certificate of public good.


(c) Transfer of records. Upon transfer of jurisdiction as set forth in
subsection (b) of this section and upon written request, the State agency having
former jurisdiction over a dam shall transfer copies of all records pertaining to
the dam to the agency acquiring jurisdiction Upon transfer of jurisdiction of
any dam from the Public Utility Commission to the Department, the Public
Utility Commission shall transfer copies of all records pertaining to the subject
dam, including record drawings, construction drawings, engineering







- 393 -


investigations and analyses, photographs, inspection reports, design,
permitting, and emergency action planning documents and any other files
pertaining to the subject dam, to the Department in digital and hardcopy
format acceptable to the Department within 30 days following the
jurisdictional transfer.


§ 1082. AUTHORIZATION


(a) No person shall construct, enlarge, raise, lower, remodel, reconstruct, or
otherwise alter any nonfederal dam, pond, or impoundment or other structure
that is or will be capable of impounding more than 500,000 cubic feet of water
or other liquid after construction or alteration, or remove, breach, or otherwise
lessen the capacity of an existing nonfederal dam that is or was capable of
impounding more than 500,000 cubic feet within or along the borders of this
State where land in this State is proposed to be overflowed, or at the outlet of
any body of water within this State, unless authorized by the State agency
having jurisdiction so to do Department, provided that an application for
activities that require authorization under 30 V.S.A. § 248 also shall be
approved by the Public Utility Commission. However, in the matter of flood
control projects where cooperation with the federal government is provided for
by the provisions of section 1100 of this title, that section shall control.


(b) For the purposes of this chapter, the volume a dam or other structure is
capable of impounding is the volume of water or other liquid, including any
accumulated sediments, controlled by the structure with the water or liquid
level at the top of the lowest nonoverflow part of the structure.


(c) An intake structure in existence on July 1, 2018 that continues to
operate in accordance with a valid Department permit or approval that contains
requirements for inspection and maintenance subject to section 1105 of this
title shall have a rebuttable presumption of compliance with the requirements
of this chapter and rules adopted under this chapter, provided that no
presumption of compliance shall apply if one or both of the following occur on
or after July 1, 2018:


(1) the owner or operator of the intake takes an action that requires
authorization under this section; or


(2) the Department issues an order under section 1095 of this title
directing reconstruction, repair, removal, breaching, draining, or other action it
considers necessary to improve the safety of the dam.







- 394 -


§ 1083. APPLICATION


(a) Any person who proposes to undertake an action subject to regulation
pursuant to section 1082 of this title shall apply in writing to the State agency
having jurisdiction Department. The application shall set forth:


(1) the location; the height, length, and other dimensions; and any
proposed changes to any existing dam;


(2) the approximate area to be overflowed and the approximate number
of or any change in the number of cubic feet of water to be impounded;


(3) the plans and specifications to be followed in the construction,
remodeling, reconstruction, altering, lowering, raising, removal, breaching, or
adding to;


(4) any change in operation and maintenance procedures; and


(5) other information that the State agency having jurisdiction
Department considers necessary to review the application.


(b) The plans and specifications shall be prepared under the supervision of
an engineer.


§ 1084. DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE; INVESTIGATION


The Commissioner of Fish and Wildlife shall investigate the potential
effects on fish and wildlife habitats of any proposal subject to section 1082 of
this title and shall certify the results to the State agency having jurisdiction
Department prior to any hearing or meeting relating to the determination of
public good and public safety.


§ 1085. NOTICE OF APPLICATION


Upon receipt of the application required by section 1082 of this title, the
State agency having jurisdiction Department shall give notice to the legislative
body of each municipality in which the dam is located and to all interested
persons. The Department shall provide notice of and an opportunity for public
comment in accordance with chapter 170 of this title.


(1) The Department shall proceed in accordance with chapter 170 of this
title.


(2) For any project subject to its jurisdiction under this chapter, the
Public Utility Commission shall hold a hearing on the application. The
purpose of the hearing shall be to determine whether the project serves the
public good as defined in section 1086 of this title and provides adequately for
the public safety. The hearing shall be held in a municipality in the vicinity of
the proposed project and may be consolidated with other hearings, including







- 395 -


hearings under 30 V.S.A. § 248 concerning the same project. Notice shall be
given at least 10 days before the hearing to interested persons by posting in the
municipal offices of the towns in which the project will be completed and by
publishing in a local newspaper.


§ 1086. DETERMINATION OF PUBLIC GOOD; CERTIFICATES


(a) “Public good” means the greatest benefit of the people of the State. In
determining whether the public good is served, the State agency having
jurisdiction Department shall give due consideration to public safety and,
among other things, the effect the proposed project will have on:


(1) the quantity, kind, and extent of cultivated agricultural land that may
be rendered unfit for use by or enhanced by the project, including both the
immediate and long-range agricultural land use impacts;


(2) scenic and recreational values;


(3) fish and wildlife;


(4) forests and forest programs;


(5) [Repealed.]


(6) the existing uses of the waters by the public for boating, fishing,
swimming, and other recreational uses;


(7) the creation of any hazard to navigation, fishing, swimming, or other
public uses;


(8) the need for cutting clean and removal of all timber or tree growth
from all or part of the flowage area;


(9) the creation of any public benefits;


(10) attainment of the Vermont water quality standards;


(11) any applicable State, regional, or municipal plans;


(12) municipal grand lists and revenues; and


(13) public safety; and


(14) in the case of the proposed removal of a dam that formerly related
to or was incident to the generation of electric energy, but that was not subject
to a memorandum of understanding dated prior to January 1, 2006 relating to
its removal, the potential for and value of future power production.


(b) If the State agency having jurisdiction Department finds that the project
proposed under section 1082 of this title will serve the public good, and, in
case of any waters designated by the Secretary as outstanding resource waters,







- 396 -


will preserve or enhance the values and activities sought to be protected by
designation, the agency shall issue its order approving the application. The
order shall include conditions for attainment of water quality standards, as
determined by the Agency of Natural Resources, and such other conditions as
the agency having jurisdiction Department considers necessary to protect any
element of the public good listed in subsection (a) of this section. Otherwise it
shall issue its order disapproving the application.


(c) The State agency having jurisdiction Department shall provide the
applicant and interested persons with copies of its order.


(d) In the case of a proposed removal of a dam that is under the jurisdiction
of the Department and that formerly related to or was incident to the
generation of electric energy but that was not subject to a memorandum of
understanding dated before January 1, 2006 relating to its removal, the
Department shall consult with the Department of Public Service regarding the
potential for and value of future power production at the site.


§ 1087. REVIEW OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS


For any proposal subject to authorization under section 1082 of this title,
the State agency having jurisdiction Department shall employ require an
engineer to investigate the property, review the plans and specifications, and
make additional investigations as the State agency having jurisdiction
Department considers necessary to ensure that the project adequately provides
for the public safety. The engineer conducting an investigation under this
section shall be an employee of the Department or shall be operating under the
supervision of the Department as an independent consultant hired by either the
Department or the project proponent. The engineer shall report his or her the
engineer’s findings to the State agency having jurisdiction Department.


§ 1089. EMPLOYMENT OF ENGINEER


With the approval of the Governor, the State agency having jurisdiction
may employ an engineer to investigate the property, review the plans and
specifications, and make such additional investigation as the State agency shall
deem necessary, and such engineer shall report to the State agency his or her
findings in respect thereto The Department shall employ engineers to perform
the duties required under this chapter to adequately provide for public safety.


§ 1090. CONSTRUCTION SUPERVISION


The construction, alteration, or other action authorized in section 1086 of
this title shall be supervised by an engineer employed by the applicant. Upon
completion of the authorized project, the engineer shall certify provide
confirmation to the agency having jurisdiction Department that the project has







- 397 -


been completed in conformance general accordance with the approved plans
and specifications and dam order conditions.


§ 1095. UNSAFE DAM; PETITION; HEARING; EMERGENCY


(a) On receipt of a petition signed by no not fewer than ten 10 interested
persons or the legislative body of a municipality, the State agency having
jurisdiction Department shall, or upon its own motion it may, institute
investigations by an engineer as described in section 1087 of this title
regarding the safety of any existing nonfederal dam or portion of the dam of
any size. The agency Department may fix a time and place for hearing and
shall give notice in the manner it directs to all interested persons. The
engineer shall present his or her the engineer’s findings and recommendations
at the hearing. After the hearing, if the Department finds that the nonfederal
dam or portion of the dam as maintained or operated is unsafe or is a menace
to people or property above or below the dam, it shall issue an order directing
reconstruction, repair, removal, breaching, draining, or other action it
considers necessary to improve the safety of the dam sufficiently to protect life
and property as required by the State agency having jurisdiction Department.


(b) If, upon the expiration of such a date as may be ordered, the person
owning legal title to such the dam or the owner of the land on which the dam
is located has not complied with the order directing the reconstruction, repair,
breaching, removal, draining, or other action of such the unsafe dam, the State
agency having jurisdiction Department may petition the Superior Court in the
county in which the dam is located to enforce its order or exercise the right of
eminent domain to acquire the rights that may be necessary to effectuate a
remedy as the public safety or public good may require. If the order has been
appealed, the court may prohibit the exercise of eminent domain by the State
agency having jurisdiction Department pending disposition of the appeal.


(c) If, upon completion of the investigation described in subsection (a) of
this section, the State agency having jurisdiction Department considers the
dam to present an imminent threat to human life or property, it shall take
whatever action it considers necessary to protect life and property and
subsequently shall conduct the hearing described in subsection (a) of this
section.


§ 1099. APPEALS


(a) Appeals of any act or decision of the Department under this chapter
shall be made in accordance with chapter 220 of this title.


(b) Appeals from actions or orders of the Public Utility Commission may
be taken in the Supreme Court in accord with 30 V.S.A. § 12.







- 398 -


* * *


§ 1105. INSPECTION OF DAMS


(a) Inspection; schedule. All nonfederal dams in the State shall be
inspected according to a schedule adopted by rule by the State agency having
jurisdiction over the dam Department.


(b) Dam inspection. A nonfederal dam in the State shall be inspected
under one or both of the following methods:


(1) The State agency having jurisdiction over a dam Department may
employ an engineer to make periodic inspections of nonfederal dams in the
State to determine their condition and the extent, if any, to which they pose a
possible or probable threat to life and property.


(2) The State agency having jurisdiction Department shall adopt rules
pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 to require an adequate level of inspection by
an independent engineer.


(c) Dam safety reports. If a dam inspection report is completed by the
State agency having jurisdiction, the agency Department, the Department shall
provide the person owning legal title to the dam or the owner of the land on
which the dam is located with a copy of the inspection report and shall make
all inspection reports available on the Department website for public review.
For dams owned by the State, the Department shall provide the inspection
report to the designated point of contact for the dam at the State entity owning
the dam and make the information available to the public on the Department
website.


(d) Notice of unsafe State dam. Notwithstanding the timing for submission
of a dam safety report under subsection (c) of this section, if the Department
determines that a State dam is unsafe and in need of repair or removal, the
Department shall immediately notify the designated point of contact of the
State entity that owns the dam and make this information available to the
public on the Department website.


§ 1106. UNSAFE DAM SAFETY REVOLVING LOAN FUND


(a) There is hereby established a special fund to be known as the Vermont
Unsafe Dam Safety Revolving Loan Fund that shall be used to provide grants
and loans to municipalities, nonprofit entities, and private individuals low- or
zero-interest loans, including subsidized loans as established under subsection
(c) of this section and the rules adopted under section 1110 of this title,
pursuant to rules adopted by the Agency of Natural Resources, for the
reconstruction, repair, removal, breaching, draining, or other action necessary
to reduce the threat risk of a dam or portion of a dam determined to be unsafe







- 399 -


pursuant to section 1095 of this chapter.


(b) Funds from the Dam Safety Revolving Loan Fund shall be available for
both emergency and nonemergency projects. To be eligible for a Dam Safety
Loan, the dam shall meet the conditions associated with the funding type:


(1) Emergency funding. To provide emergency funding for critical,
time-sensitive temporary safety or risk reduction measures such as reservoir
drawdown, partially or fully breaching the dam, stabilization or buttressing of
the dam, including engineering and emergency action planning activities. To
be eligible for emergency funding, the dam must meet the following criteria:


(A) The dam must be under the regulatory jurisdiction of the DEC
Dam Safety Program, including dams owned by the State of Vermont.


(B) The dam must be in need of critical time-sensitive safety or risk
reduction measures in order to protect public safety and property, or be a dam
found to be unsafe or a menace to public safety under section 1095 of this title.
The Dam Safety Program shall be able to access the fund on behalf of owners
in cases of emergency, immediate need, or in the case of unwilling or unable
dam owners.


(2) Nonemergency funding. For permanent safety or risk reduction
projects such as repair, rehabilitation, or removal, including engineering,
analyses, design, and construction. To be eligible for nonemergency funding,
the dam must meet the following criteria:


(A) The dam must be under the regulatory jurisdiction of the DEC
Dam Safety Program, excluding dams owned by the State of Vermont.


(B) The dam must be classified as a significant or high-hazard
potential dam and in fair, poor, or unsatisfactory condition based on the last
periodic or comprehensive inspection.


(C) For funding for nonemergency repair or rehabilitation projects,
the dam owner shall provide an operation and maintenance plan and dam
safety compliance schedule as well as financial information to show sufficient
resources are available to maintain the dam and comply with the dam safety
rules after the completion of repairs or the rehabilitation project.


(D) For funding for nonemergency construction, the applicant shall
provide proof that applicable local, State, and federal permits have been
obtained, including the State Dam Safety Order.


(E) To be eligible for nonemergency funding, an alternatives analysis
of dam repair, rehabilitation, and removal options that considers an evaluation
of risk reduction, dam safety and ecological resilience and public benefits







- 400 -


considerations, and costs shall be completed, pursuant to the rule adopted by
the Department.


(F) Under this subdivision (b)(2), only engineering, analysis, design,
and construction that result in acceptable risk reduction are eligible for loan
subsidy.


(c) The Fund created by this section shall be established and held separate
and apart from any other funds or monies of the State and shall be used and
administered exclusively for the purposes set forth in this section. The funds
shall be invested in the same manner as permitted for investment of funds
belonging to the State or held in the Treasury. The Fund shall consist of the
following:


(1) Such such sums as may be appropriated or transferred thereto from
time to time by the General Assembly, the Emergency Board, or the Joint
Fiscal Committee during such times as the General Assembly is not in
session.;


(2) Principal principal and interest received from the repayment of loans
made from the Fund.;


(3) Capitalization capitalization grants and awards made to the State by
the United States of America for the purposes for which the Fund has been
established.;


(4) Interest interest earned from the investment of Fund balances.;


(5) Private private gifts, bequests, and donations made to the State for
the purposes for which the Fund has been established.; and


(6) Other other funds from any public or private source intended for use
for any of the purposes for which the Fund has been established.


(c)(d) The Secretary may bring an action under this subsection or other
available State and federal laws against the owner of the dam to seek
reimbursement to the Fund for all loans made from the Fund pursuant to this
section.


(e)(1) Annually, on or before January 31, the Department shall report to the
House Committee on Environment and Energy and the Senate Committee on
Natural Resources and Energy regarding operation and administration of the
Dam Safety Program. The report shall include:


(A) details on all emergency and nonemergency loans made from the
Dam Safety Fund during the previous year;


(B) a description of each project funded from the Dam Safety Fund,







- 401 -


including dam name, town and waterbody in which the dam is located, hazard
classification, dam condition, details of the repair or removal, year of the last
and next Department inspection, project cost, loan amount, and repayment
terms;


(C) for emergency loans, justification for the emergency and an
explanation why action was needed to be undertaken immediately using State
funds; and


(D) a projection of loan repayment income to the fund.


(2) The Department shall post reports made under this subsection to its
website on the same date the report is submitted to the General Assembly.


§ 1107. HAZARD POTENTIAL CLASSIFICATIONS


(a) The State agency having jurisdiction over a nonfederal dam listed in the
Vermont Dam Inventory Department shall assess the hazard potential
classification of the dam all nonfederal dams listed in the Vermont Dam
Inventory based on the potential loss of human life, property damage, and
economic loss that would occur in the event of the failure of the dam. There
shall be four hazard potential classifications: high, significant, low, and
minimal.


(b) The State agency having jurisdiction over a nonfederal dam on the
Vermont Dam Inventory Department may assess or reassess the hazard
potential classification of the dam at any time.


* * *


§ 1110. RULEMAKING


The Commissioner of Environmental Conservation shall adopt rules to
implement the requirements of this chapter for dams under the jurisdiction of
the Department. The rules shall include:


(1) a standard or regulatory threshold under which a dam is exempt
from the registration or inspection requirements of this chapter;


(2) standards for:


(A) the siting, design, construction, reconstruction, enlargement,
modification, or alteration of a dam;


(B) operation and maintenance of a dam;


(C) inspection, monitoring, record keeping, and reporting;


(D) repair, breach, or removal of a dam;


(E) application for authorization under section 1082 of this title; and







- 402 -


(F) the development of an emergency action plan for a dam,
including guidance on how to develop an emergency action plan, the content
of a plan, and when and how an emergency action plan should be updated;


(3) criteria for the hazard potential classification of dams in the State;


(4) a process by which a person owning legal title to a dam or a person
owning the land on which the dam is located shall register a dam and record
the existence of the dam in the lands records; and


(5) requirements for the person owning legal title to a dam or the person
owning the land on which the dam is located to conduct inspections of the
dam; and


(6) requirements for access to financing and subsidy from the Dam
Safety Revolving Loan Fund, including the requirement that an alternatives
analysis be performed by an engineering consultant hired by either the dam
owner or the Department.


§ 1111. NATURAL RESOURCES ATLAS; DAM STATUS


Annually on or before January 1, the Public Utility Commission shall
submit to the Department updated inventory information from the previous
calendar year for dams under the jurisdiction of the Public Utility
Commission. [Repealed.]


Sec. 19. 2018 Acts and Resolves No. 161, Sec. 2, as amended by 2023 Acts
and Resolves No. 79, Sec. 1, is further amended to read:


Sec. 2. DAM REGISTRATION PROGRAM REPORT


On or before January 1, 2025 2026, the Department of Environmental
Conservation shall submit a report to the House Committees on Natural
Resources, Fish, and Wildlife Environment and Energy and on Ways and
Means and the Senate Committees on Natural Resources and Energy and on
Finance. The report shall contain:


(1) an evaluation of the dam registration program under 10 V.S.A.
chapter 43;


(2) a recommendation on whether to modify the fee structure of the dam
registration program;


(3) a summary of the dams registered under the program, organized by
amount of water impounded and hazard potential classification; and


(4) an evaluation of any other dam safety concerns related to dam
registration.







- 403 -


Sec. 20. 2018 Acts and Resolves No. 161, Sec. 3, as amended by 2023 Acts
and Resolves No. 79, Sec. 2, is further amended to read:


Sec. 3. ADOPTION OF RULES


The Secretary of Natural Resources shall adopt the rules required under
10 V.S.A. § 1110 as follows:


(1) the rules required under 10 V.S.A. § 1110(1) (exemptions),
§ 1110(3) (emergency action plan), § 1110(4) (hazard potential classification),
§ 1110(5) (dam registration), and § 1110(6) (dam inspection) shall be adopted
on or before July 1, 2020; and


(2) the rules required under 10 V.S.A. § 1110(2) (dam design standards)
shall be adopted on or before July 1, 2024 2025.


Sec. 21. DAM SAFETY DIVISION POSITIONS


In addition to other funds appropriated to the Agency of Natural Resources
in fiscal year 2025:


(1) $900,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund for the purposes
of funding six new permanent full-time classified positions in the Dam Safety
Division of the Department of Environmental Conservation; and


(2) $2,000,000.00 is appropriated from the General Fund for the
purposes of implementation of the Dam Safety Revolving Loan Fund.


Sec. 22. STUDY COMMITTEE ON DAM EMERGENCY OPERATIONS
PLANNING


(a) Creation. There is created the Study Committee on Dam Emergency
Operations Planning to review and recommend how to improve regional
emergency action planning for hazards caused by dam failure, including how
to shift responsibility for emergency planning from individual municipalities
to regional authorities, how to improve regional implementation of dam
emergency response plans, and how to fund dam emergency action planning at
the regional level.


(b) Membership. The Study Committee on Dam Emergency Operations
Planning shall be composed of the following members:


(1) one current member of the House of Representatives, who shall be
appointed by the Speaker of the House;


(2) one current member of the Senate, who shall be appointed by the
Committee on Committees;


(3) one member of the Department of Environmental Conservation Dam
Safety Program, who shall be appointed by the Governor;







- 404 -


(4) two members representing regional planning commissions in the
State, who shall be appointed by the Committee on Committees;


(5) one member of the Division of Emergency Management, who shall
be appointed by the Governor;


(6) two legal owners of a dam, one of whom shall own a dam capable of
generating electricity, who shall be appointed by the Speaker upon
recommendation of the Dam Safety Program of the Department of
Environmental Conservation; and


(7) one or more emergency management director or incident
commander from a municipality with experience in developing and carrying
out an emergency operation plan.


(c) Powers and duties. The Study Committee on Dam Emergency
Operations Planning shall:


(1) identify those dams in the State that are classified as high-hazard
dams;


(2) summarize the existing responsibilities of individual municipalities
to prepare for and implement existing emergency response plans, including
how those responsibilities are funded and whether placing responsibility with
individual municipalities is appropriate;


(3) identify the regional planning commissions in which a dam
identified under subdivision (1) of this subsection are located;


(4) recommend the content for a regional emergency action plan for
each dam identified under subdivision (1) of this subsection, including
identifying necessary evacuations, how evacuees will be sheltered and
provided care, and the location of emergency management centers for each
dam;


(5) recommend who should prepare a regional emergency action plan
for each dam identified under subdivision (1) of this subsection, including the
basis for the recommendation and the role that regional planning commissions
should play in the preparation of the plans;


(6) estimate the cost of the production of regional emergency action
plans for dams; and


(7) estimate the cost for regional planning commissions and
municipalities to implement an emergency action plan, including a
recommended source of the funding.







- 405 -


(d) Assistance. For purposes of scheduling meetings and administrative
support, the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the Office of
Legislative Operations. For purposes of providing legal assistance and
drafting of legislation, the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the
Office of Legislative Counsel. For the purpose of providing fiscal assistance,
the Study Committee shall have the assistance of the Joint Fiscal Office.


(e) Report. On or before December 15, 2024, the Study Committee shall
submit a written report to the General Assembly with its findings and any
recommendations for legislative action. Any recommendation for legislative
action shall be submitted as draft legislation.


(f) Meetings.


(1) The Office of Legislative Counsel shall call the first meeting of the
Study Committee.


(2) The Committee shall select a chair from among its members at the
first meeting.


(3) A majority of the membership of the Study Committee shall
constitute a quorum.


(4) The Study Committee shall cease to exist on March 1, 2025.


(g) Compensation and reimbursement.


(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General
Assembly, a legislative member of the Study Committee shall be entitled to
per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A.
§ 23 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


(2) Other members of the Study Committee shall be entitled to per diem
compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A.
§ 1010 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


Sec. 23. DETERMINATION OF FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY
COMMISSION (FERC) JURISDICTION


Nonfederal hydroelectric projects without a valid pre-1920 license may be
subject to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) jurisdiction
and may require a license from FERC to operate. By July 31, 2025, the
Department of Environmental Conservation, in coordination with the Public
Utility Commission, shall file petitions for a Declaratory Order from FERC to
determine whether projects currently under the Public Utility Commission’s
jurisdiction fall under FERC’s hydroelectric licensing jurisdiction. The Public







- 406 -


Utility Commission shall provide notice to the dam owner when a petition is
filed with FERC.


Sec. 24. TRANSITION; DAMS


(a) On or before July 1, 2028, the Department of Environmental
Conservation shall assume jurisdiction under 10 V.S.A. chapter 43 of all dams
within the jurisdiction of the Public Utility Commission as of July 1, 2024.


(b) On or before January 15, 2026 and annually thereafter until the
Department of Environmental Conservation has assumed jurisdiction under 10
V.S.A. chapter 43 over all dams from the Public Utility Commission, the
Department of Environmental Conservation shall report to the Senate
Committee on Natural Resources and Energy and the House Committee on
Environment and Energy regarding progress in preparation for transfer of
jurisdiction of the dams from the Public Utility Commission to the Department
of Environmental Conservation.


(c) Notwithstanding the effective date of Sec. 18 of this act (transfer of
dam safety jurisdiction), the Public Utility Commission shall retain jurisdiction
over dams within its control as of July 1, 2024 until the Department of
Environmental Conservation assumes the jurisdiction of each dam as required
by subsection (a) of this section. While the Public Utility Commission
continues to exercise authority under 10 V.S.A. chapter 43, as it existed on
June 30, 2024, the Public Utility Commission shall apply the dam design
standard rules as adopted by the Department of Environmental Conservation.


(d) The rulemaking required under Sec. 18 (dam safety transfer) of this act
under 10 V.S.A. § 1110(6) and (7) shall be completed on or before July 1,
2027.


(e) Funding from the Dam Safety Revolving Fund, as amended by Sec. 18
of this act (dam safety transfer) shall be available for nonemergency use upon
the completion of rulemaking required under 10 V.S.A. §1110 (6) and (7).


* * * Basin Planning * * *


Sec. 25. 10 V.S.A. § 1253(d) is amended to read:


(d)(1) Through the process of basin planning, the Secretary shall determine
what degree of water quality and classification should be obtained and
maintained for those waters not classified by the Board before 1981 following
the procedures in sections 1254 and 1258 of this title. Those waters shall be
classified in the public interest. The Secretary shall prepare and maintain an
overall surface water management plan to assure that the State water quality
standards are met in all State waters. The surface water management plan
shall include a schedule for updating the basin plans. The Secretary, in







- 407 -


consultation with regional planning commissions and the Natural Resources
Conservation Council, shall revise all 15 basin plans and update the basin
plans on a five-year rotating basis. On or before January 15 of each year, the
Secretary shall report to the House Committees on Agriculture, Food
Resiliency, and Forestry and on Natural Resources, Fish, and Wildlife
Environment and Energy and to the Senate Committees on Agriculture and on
Natural Resources and Energy regarding the progress made and difficulties
encountered in revising basin plans. The report shall include a summary of
basin planning activities in the previous calendar year, a schedule for the
production of basin plans in the subsequent calendar year, and a summary of
actions to be taken over the subsequent three years. The provisions of 2
V.S.A. § 20(d) (expiration of required reports) shall not apply to the report to
be made under this subsection.


(2) In developing a basin plan under this subsection, the Secretary shall:


(A) identify waters that should be reclassified outstanding resource
waters or that should have one or more uses reclassified under section 1252 of
this title;


(B) identify wetlands that should be reclassified as Class I wetlands;


(C) identify projects or activities within a basin that will result in the
protection and enhancement of water quality;


* * *


(J) provide for public notice of a draft basin plan; and


(K) provide for the opportunity of public comment on a draft basin
plan; and


(L) identify opportunities to mitigate impacts of severe precipitation
events on communities through implementation of nature-based restoration
projects or practices that increase natural flood water attenuation and storage.


* * * Expanded Polystyrene Foam * * *


Sec. 26. 10 V.S.A. chapter 47, subchapter 2B is added to read:


Subchapter 2B. Expanded Polystyrene Foam


§ 1321. DEFINITIONS


As used in this subchapter:


(1) “Buoy” means any float or marker that is attached to a mooring
anchor and either is suitable for attachment to a boat through the use of a
pennant or other device or facilitates the attachment of the boat to the mooring
anchor.







- 408 -


(2) “Dock” means an unenclosed structure secured to land, land under
waters, or a mooring or a floating structure that is used for mooring boats or
for recreational activities, such as a swimming, fishing, or sunbathing
platform. A dock includes a structure that is partially enclosed or has two or
more levels.


(3) “Encapsulated” means a protective covering or physical barrier
between the polystyrene device and the water.


(4) “Expanded polystyrene foam” means a thermoplastic petrochemical
material utilizing the styrene monomer that is processed according to multiple
techniques, including fusion of polymer spheres, injection molding, form
molding, and extrusion-blow molding.


(5) “Floating structure” means a structure constructed on or in a water
of the State that is supported by flotation and is secured in place by a piling or
mooring anchor, including boathouses, fueling structures, floating homes,
marinas, walkways, or boarding platforms.


(6) “Mooring anchor” means any anchor or weight that is designed to:


(A) rest on the land under water or be buried in the land under water;


(B) be attached to a buoy or floating structure by a chain, rope, or
other mechanism; and


(C) be left in position permanently or on a seasonal basis.


§ 1322. INSTALLATION, REPAIR, REMOVAL, AND SALE OF BUOYS,
DOCKS, OR FLOATING STRUCTURES


(a) Encapsulation required. Expanded polystyrene foam used for flotation,
including buoys, docks, or floating structures, shall be encapsulated by a
protective covering or shall be designed to prevent the expanded polystyrene
foam from disintegrating into the water.


(b) Prohibition; unencapsulated polystyrene and open-cell (beaded)
polystyrene; repair. No person shall use unencapsulated polystyrene or open-
cell (beaded) polystyrene for the installation of a new buoy, dock, or floating
structure on the waters of the State. Unencapsulated polystyrene materials and
open-cell beaded polystyrene shall not be used for the repair of buoys, docks,
or floating structures on waters of the State.


(c) Methods of encapsulation.


(1) Encapsulation of a buoy, dock, or floating structure required under
subsection (a) of this section shall completely cover or be a physical barrier
between the expanded polystyrene foam and the water. Small gaps up to 0.75-







- 409 -


inch-diameter ballast holes are permitted in the physical barrier or covering
provided they are 0.1 percent or less of the square footage of the buoy, dock,
or floating structure.


(2) All materials and methods of encapsulation shall provide an
effective physical barrier between the expanded polystyrene foam and the
water for a period not less than 10 years. Any fasteners used to hold
encapsulation materials together shall be effectively treated or be of a form
resistant to corrosion and decay.


(d) Disposal. Irreparable encapsulated polystyrene, unencapsulated
polystyrene, and irreparable encapsulated open-cell (beaded) polystyrene used
for flotation, including buoys, docks, or floating structures, shall be properly
disposed of in an approved manner.


(e) Sale or distribution. No person shall sell, offer for sale, or otherwise
distribute for compensation within the State dock floats, mooring buoys, or
anchor or navigation markers made, in whole or in part, from expanded
polystyrene foam that is:


(1) not wholly encapsulated or encased within a more durable material;
or


(2) open-cell (beaded) polystyrene, including materials that are
encapsulated and unencapsulated.


§ 1323. NUISANCE


The use of unencapsulated polystyrene as a flotation device in waters of the
State, including in any dock system, float, mooring system, or buoy, is
declared a nuisance and public health hazard and may be prosecuted as
provided in the Vermont Revised Statutes.


§ 1324. RULEMAKING


The Secretary may adopt rules to implement the requirements of this
subchapter.


Sec. 27. APPROPRIATIONS


The amount of $50,000.00 shall be appropriated from the General Fund to
the Department of Environmental Conservation to support education and
outreach regarding the requirements and prohibitions for the use of expanded
polystyrene foam or open-cell (beaded) polystyrene in waters of the State.







- 410 -


* * * Floodplain Management; Use Value Appraisal Program * * *


Sec. 28. STUDY COMMITTEE ON ENROLMENT OF FLOODPLAIN
MANAGEMENT LAND IN USE VALUE APPRAISAL; REPORT


(a) Creation. There is created the Study Committee on Enrolling
Floodplain Management Land in the Use Value Appraisal Program to
determine whether or how to authorize the enrollment of land designated for
floodplain management in the Use Value Appraisal (UVA) Program.


(b) Membership. The Study Committee shall be composed of the
following members:


(1) one current member of the House of Representatives, who shall be
appointed by the Speaker of the House;


(2) one current member of the Senate, who shall be appointed by the
Committee on Committees;


(3) the Director of Property Valuation and Review or designee;


(4) the Director of the Rivers Program within the Watershed
Management Division at the Department of Environmental Conservation or
designee;


(5) the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets or designee;


(6) a member of the Current Use Advisory Board, who shall be
appointed by the Speaker of the House; and


(7) a member of a statewide environmental organization, who shall be
appointed by the Committee on Committees.


(c) Powers and duties. The Study Committee shall evaluate the following
questions:


(1) whether and why real property managed to provide flood mitigation
or flood resilience services should or should not be authorized to enroll in the
UVA Program; and


(2) if the Study Committee recommends that real property that provides
flood mitigation or flood resilience services should be allowed to enroll in the
UVA Program, what should be the criteria for enrollment, what should be the
use value rate for qualifying enrolled real property, and what should be the
timeline for enrollment.


(d) Assistance. The Study Committee shall have the administrative,
technical, legal, and fiscal assistance of the Department of Taxes.







- 411 -


(e) Report. On or before January 15, 2025, the Study Committee shall
submit a written report to the Senate Committees on Finance and on Natural
Resources and Energy and the House Committees on Ways and Means and on
Environment and Energy with its findings and any recommendations for
legislative action, including proposed legislative language.


(f) Meetings.


(1) The Director of Property Valuation and Review or designee shall
call the first meeting of the Study Committee to occur on or before September
1, 2025.


(2) The Study Committee shall select a chair from among its members
at the first meeting.


(3) A majority of the membership shall constitute a quorum.


(4) The Study Committee shall cease to exist on March 1, 2025.


(g) Compensation and reimbursement.


(1) For attendance at meetings during adjournment of the General
Assembly, a legislative member of the Study Committee shall be entitled to
per diem compensation and reimbursement of expenses pursuant to 2 V.S.A.
§ 23 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the General Assembly.


(2) Other members of the Study Committee shall be entitled to per diem
compensation and reimbursement of expenses as permitted under 32 V.S.A.
§ 1010 for not more than eight meetings. These payments shall be made from
monies appropriated to the Department of Taxes.


* * * Effective Dates * * *


Sec. 29. EFFECTIVE DATES


(a) This section and Secs. 19 (dam registration report), 20 (dam design
standard rules), and 23 (FERC petition) shall take effect on passage.


(b) All other sections shall take effect July 1, 2024, except that:


(1) in Sec. 18, 10 V.S.A. § 1106 (Dam Safety Revolving Loan Fund)
shall take effect on passage;


(2) under Sec. 25 (basin planning), the requirement shall be effective for
updated Tactical Basin Plans that commence on or after January 1, 2025; and


(3) in Sec. 26 (expanded polystyrene foam requirements), 10 V.S.A.
§ 1324 (ANR rulemaking) shall take effect on passage.


(Committee vote: 5-0-0)











density).
 
·        Multi-unit Dwellings – Expands on last year’s HOME Act provision regarding areas served by

municipal sewer and water, to require that 3 and 4 unit dwellings be permitted on lots of at least
1/3 acre and with an allowed density of at least 12 units per acre.  Also clarifies that both density
and minimum lot size standards for multi-unit dwellings cannot be more restrictive than those
required for single unit dwellings.  Unclear if this means the minimum lot size requirement for a
4-plex must be the same as a single-unit dwelling lot, or if it can be required to be bigger on a per
unit basis.

 
·        Density & Lot Size – Expands on last year’s HOME Act minimum five dwelling units per acre

density within municipal sewer and water areas.  The new provision would require that any lot
smaller than one acre by no more than 10% be treated as one acre for residential density
purposes, if granted a variance.  Yep, that’s a weird one given how difficult it is to grant
variances.

 
·        Unrelated Occupants – Prohibits zoning and subdivision bylaws from having the effect of

prohibiting unrelated occupants from residing in the same dwelling.
 
·        Hotel & Motel Conversion – Puts conversion of hotels and motels to permanently affordable

housing in the protected class of uses – i.e., those that can only be subject to limited review akin
to site plan review.  Similar to State facilities, churches, schools, etc.

 
·        Parking Bylaws – Expressly allows for certain types of parking and sets a standard parking space

size:
Tandem Parking Allowed – Tandem (i.e., stacked) parking spaces shall count toward
residential parking requirements; however, a municipality may require that tandem spaces
are not shared between different dwelling units.
Parking Space Size – Defines dimensions of a standard parking space as 9’x18’, but allows
municipalities to allow smaller spaces for compact cars, and larger spaces for ADA compliance
as required.
Existing Non-conforming Parking – Requires that municipalities allow existing nonconforming
parking spaces to count toward parking requirements when new dwelling units are added to
an existing building.

 
·        Lot Coverage – Requires that municipalities allow for a maximum lot coverage bonus of 10% on

lots that allow access to new or subdivided lots without road frontage.  Still wondering what
stakeholder or specific problem project prompted this provision.

 
·        Decision Clock – Requires that appropriate municipal panels (e.g., DRB, PC, ZBA) issue decisions

on a development application within 180 days of receipt of a complete application, unless the
applicant and the panel agree to waive the deadline.  Needs refinement, as this change could
result in slower decisions compared to the current requirement of issuing a decision within 45
days of closing a hearing.

 



·        Appeals Interested Person/Group Number – The ability of immediate abutters, the applicant,
and others outlined in statute would remain.  However, the bill does change the existing
provision that allows any 10 residents or property owners to appeal a municipal development
review decision. Instead, this would be increased to three percent of the municipality’s
population or any 25 persons.  Wording seems unclear as to whether it is really three percent of
the population (potentially a very large number in some communities) or just 25 persons.

 
·        Appeal Exclusions – Prohibits appeals of municipal decisions regarding residential and mixed-use

development with up to 25 dwelling units in areas served by municipal sewer and water. 
Prohibits appeals regarding any permitted residential and mixed-use development that doesn’t
require conditional use review.  Prohibits appeals regarding any housing or mixed-use
development within a designated center in a zoning district that allows residential development.

 
Want to see the actual bill language?

S.311 – see attached
S.308 – see online, Senate Natural Resources & Energy bills webpage
H.687 – see online, House Environment & Energy bills webpage

 
For those interested and/or engaged:

Pay attention to the Senate Natural Resources & Energy Committee weekly agenda in the coming
weeks.
Be ready to draft and submit feedback to the full committee and its assistant (just six people). 
Contact information on the committee webpage.
If interested in testifying (most impactful way to provide feedback), contact the Committee
Chairperson (Senator Chris Bray, cbray@leg.state.vt.us) and copy the committee assistant (Jude
Newman, jnewman@leg.state.vt.us) to request an opportunity to testify when the committee
begins work on merging these three bills.

 
S.213 – State regulation of flood hazard areas, wetlands, river corridors and dam safety
See my 2/6/24 legislative summary for a description of this bill – can be found on the VPA website.  It
passed out of the Senate Natural Resources & Energy Committee on February 23 with substantial
revisions.  See attached for the latest version.  Perhaps the most significant revision is that the bill no
longer contemplates the State taking over permitting and administration of flood hazard area
development from municipalities.  Instead, it requires the State to have a flood hazard permitting
system for development exempt from municipal flood hazard permitting.  More importantly, it
directs the State to develop minimum flood hazard area development standards by 2026 for
enrollment in the National Flood Insurance Program, and to require that all municipal flood hazard
regulations meet or exceed these minimum standards by 2028.
 
Well, actually… the bill does still include a separate State permit system for development in a river
corridor area. So, presumably any development in both a river corridor and a flood hazard area will
require both State and municipal permits.  The bill also still includes stronger “net-gain” wetland
regulation changes and dam safety provisions.
 
The bill does contain some funding provisions, so it will visit the Appropriations Committee before it

https://legislature.vermont.gov/committee/document/2024/211/Bill/503392#documents-section
https://legislature.vermont.gov/committee/document/2024/19/Bill/498983#documents-section
https://legislature.vermont.gov/committee/detail/2024/211
https://legislature.vermont.gov/committee/detail/2024/211
https://legislature.vermont.gov/bill/status/2024/S.213
https://nne.planning.org/policy/vermont/2021/


heads to the full Senate for a vote.  At this point, recommendations for substantive changes will
need to be made on the House side (i.e., House Environment & Energy Committee), if and when the
Senate approves the bill.  As reported in a February 23 VT Digger article, the Governor is opposed to
the bill, and has threatened to veto it – in part because the State Agency of Natural Resources
doesn’t have the resources to administer the new programs and because the bill doesn’t include
enough new funding/resources for ANR to do so.
---------------------------------------------------
Alex Weinhagen
Vermont Planners Association
President & Legislative Committee Member
aweinhagen@hinesburg.org
https://nne.planning.org/sections/vermont/
802-777-3995 (cell/text)
802-482-4209 (Town of Hinesburg – the day job work phone)
---------------------------------------------------

     Advancing the art and science of planning in Vermont
 

https://vtdigger.org/2024/02/23/flood-safety-bill-proposes-big-reforms-to-developing-near-rivers-it-faces-a-likely-veto/
mailto:aweinhagen@hinesburg.org
https://nne.planning.org/sections/vermont/

	1. PC agenda 3-19-2024
	2. Staff Report for 3-19-2024
	3. 2024 MPG RFQ
	4. Interview Notes MPG
	5. Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project Update #9
	Waitsfield Wastewater Planning Project Update #9.pdf
	WCWP Info Sheet_2.23.24

	6. One_Pager_V8_Final_2.23.24
	7. Waitsfield-PC-Minutes-February-20-2024-draft
	8. Waitsfield_PC_vacancy_ad_2024
	9. [VPA] VPA Legislative Summary - 2_26_24

